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 1           (Beginning of audio recording.)

 2               MS. LAUGHLIN:  All right.  We're

 3 now live.  Thank you, everyone.

 4               MR. CASSIDY:  Good morning,

 5 everyone, and welcome to a rare morning meeting

 6 of the Board of Zoning Appeals.  I'm Frank

 7 Cassidy.  I'm the chairman of the Board.  Please

 8 note that the Town of Kiawah Island until further

 9 notice will conduct all committee and public

10 meetings over videoconference as we are today.

11 These meetings will be streamed and is being

12 streamed to the Town's YouTube channel.  Members

13 of the public wishing to submit comments

14 regarding any of the presented BZA cases should

15 e-mail their comments to Petra Reynolds, town

16 clerk, at preynolds@kiawahisland.org.

17          The Board members who will hear your

18 case today -- cases today are Wendy Kulick,

19 myself Frank Cassidy, Jay Lewis, Morris Hanan,

20 Ben Farabee, and we are pleased to welcome our

21 two new members of the BZA, Russ Berner and Larry

22 Rosenfeld.  Welcome, gentlemen.

23               MR. BERNER:  Thank you.

24               MR. CASSIDY:  Staff -- staff

25 members present are John Taylor, Junior, our
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 1 planning director, and Joe Wilson, the attorney

 2 for the BZA.

 3               MR. TAYLOR:  Hey, Frank.  Can I

 4 pause you there --

 5               MR. CASSIDY:  Sure.

 6               MR. TAYLOR:  -- just to know, Joe

 7 hasn't joined us just yet, so we can go through

 8 some of the protocol before we get started.

 9               MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  Fine.  Our

10 case rulings from this and any BZA meeting are

11 available for public review and inspection during

12 normal business hours at the town hall.  Since

13 our meeting is being conducted virtually, please

14 be reminded that in order to obtain a clean and

15 clear record for persons listening live, it is

16 important that all participants not speak over

17 one another.  If you'd like to speak, please do

18 so by raising your hand, and wait until you're

19 acknowledged by the chairman.

20          I would also -- I would like to ask any

21 of the members of the public present today if you

22 are familiar with the procedural workings of the

23 BZA.  If everyone is familiar, I'll skip the

24 comprehensive explanation of the BG -- BZA

25 workings.  If anyone would like to hear that
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 1 comprehensive explanation, raise your hand,

 2 otherwise I'll just continue.  Seeing no one,

 3 I'll -- I'll move forward.

 4               MR. TAYLOR:  Could -- could we

 5 pause here, Mr. Cassidy --

 6               MR. CASSIDY:  Sure.

 7               MR. TAYLOR:  -- and just do a

 8 second set of roll call?  We've had some

 9 additional folks join us.  And just to ensure

10 that the meeting goes a little bit smoothly, just

11 reminding folks, if you are not on the Board,

12 that we ask that you please pause or stop your

13 video until your case has been called.  That way

14 once we do call your case, that we can have you

15 join via video.  We -- we have a number of

16 persons who will be on today's call, and so we

17 want to just keep a little bit sort of a clear

18 understanding of who's presenting at what time.

19 Thank you so much.

20               MR. CASSIDY:  Thanks, John.

21 Because today's hearing is a public factfinding

22 meeting, we are in compliance with the Freedom of

23 Information Act and SC Code 6-29-70.  Because

24 this is a quasi-judicial body, everything said in

25 this meeting must be complete, true, and
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 1 accurate.  All of the information provided to the

 2 BZA is considered evidence, and this Board may

 3 certify contempt of circuit court if false

 4 statements are made either in writing or orally.

 5 Because of this, each person who wishes to

 6 address the Board will be sworn in.

 7          Has Joe Wilson joined, John?

 8               MR. TAYLOR:  Not at the moment.  We

 9 have a call out to see where he might be, so he's

10 -- he has not joined us just yet.

11               MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  John, do you

12 want to start in on presenting the first case, or

13 should we wait on that?

14               MR. TAYLOR:  Let's pause just for a

15 second.  If you may just review some of the BZA

16 purview --

17               MR. CASSIDY:  Sure.

18               MR. TAYLOR:  -- that -- that would

19 probably be most appropriate.

20               MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  The Board --

21 the Board of Zoning Appeals has jurisdiction over

22 three types of cases:  Appeals, variances, and

23 special exceptions.  Appeals are heard regarding

24 administrative actions or decisions by the zoning

25 administrator or staff.  Variances may be granted
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 1 when strict application of the zoning other than

 2 -- of the zoning ordinance would cause an

 3 unnecessary hardship.  This Board's actions must

 4 be based on specific standards as contained in

 5 the SC Local Government Planning Enabling Act of

 6 1994 in the Town of Kiawah Island zoning

 7 ordinance.  And then the third is -- item of

 8 jurisdiction is special exceptions, which allow

 9 the Board to permit uses of certain conditions as

10 contained in the zoning ordinance are met.

11          A simple majority vote of the quorum

12 present is required to grant a variance or

13 overturn the decision of the zoning administrator

14 on an appeal or to grant a special exception.

15          Because today's hearing is a public

16 factfinding hearing, we are in compliance with --

17 as I mentioned, with the Freedom of Information

18 Act.  Fifteen days prior to this hearing, an

19 announcement was printed in the posted Courier, a

20 sign was posted on or near the designated

21 property, and a notice was mailed to the

22 applicant or representative and to residents

23 within 300 feet of the application and to parties

24 of interest.  Persons, organizations, and the

25 news media that have requested declaration of our
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 1 meeting have been informed.

 2          The Freedom of Information Act does not

 3 require a notification of anyone other than the

 4 applicant and parties of interest.  Our purpose

 5 today is for interested parties to be heard in

 6 order to assist the Board in gathering evidence

 7 to -- pertinent to each case.  If the members of

 8 the BZA feel the need for further information to

 9 clarify the case, the Board has the authority to

10 subpoena witnesses -- subpoena witnesses.

11          In addition to your testimony, our Board

12 has been presented written information submitted

13 to the staff by the applicant -- I believe

14 you-all have seen that -- or their agent for each

15 case.  This information is now considered to be

16 evidence and is entered into the permanent record

17 of this body.  It's assumed that this is

18 complete, true, and accurate.

19          Also, we have been presented data

20 assembled by the staff for the purpose of

21 clarifying the location and the affect on

22 surrounding property.  Our Board is empowered to

23 approve, approve of conditions, or deny your

24 request.  We are also authorized to defer a case

25 should there be a need to obtain additional
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 1 information.

 2          If an applicant's request is approved

 3 for a special exception or a variance or an

 4 appeal of a decision by the zoning administrator,

 5 they must go to the Town of Kiawah Island to

 6 apply for permits.  Variances and special

 7 exceptions granted by the BZA are valid for 12

 8 months after this meeting.

 9          However, if the applicant's request is

10 disapproved and they wish to appeal the decision

11 of the Board concerning this case, appeals must

12 be addressed to the circuit court.

13          SC Code 6-29-20 states that the appeal

14 must be filed by the applicant within 30 days

15 after the decision of the Board is mailed to

16 them.  Failure to file an appeal within the time

17 limit deprives the Court of the jurisdiction to

18 hear this matter.

19          Okay, John.  Do we have Joe present yet?

20 You're on mute, John.

21               MR. TAYLOR:  Joe has not joined us.

22 We've sent out an e-mail and -- and prior call.

23 I have not gotten a word just yet.  I think what

24 we can do at this time is we can introduce the

25 record.  But until we do have our town attorney,
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 1 we won't be able to begin entertaining any of the

 2 case.  So I just want to take a pause here until

 3 we do get Joe on.  But if we can, I will share --

 4 share the beginnings of case -- the first case so

 5 that we begin the record.  And then once Joe does

 6 join, we can entertain those members to speak on

 7 the application.

 8               MR. CASSIDY:  That's fine.  So

 9 John, the floor is yours.

10               MR. TAYLOR:  Okay.  I'm going to

11 share my screen here in just a moment.  While I'm

12 doing that, if the applicants -- all Board

13 members, you can -- you can keep your -- your

14 screen shared.  You don't have to stop your

15 video.  But I will ask that the applicants for

16 this case -- if Alice is on or Christian Werner,

17 if you-all are on, you can share your video or

18 start your video if you would like to.

19               MS. LANHAM:  I don't believe

20 Mr. Werner is here, at least not yet.

21               MR. TAYLOR:  Okay.  That's fine.

22 Are you able to see my slides there, everyone?

23          ("Yes" was responded by multiple

24 people.)

25               MR. TAYLOR:  Thank you.  So today's
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 1 first case, which is BZA20-000014, I want to be

 2 clear in knowing first that our town attorney

 3 will be joining us shortly, momentarily

 4 hopefully, and so everything that's noted we will

 5 include into the record officially.

 6          But today's case, BZA20-000014, this is

 7 a variance request, and this is for the reduction

 8 of the required 25-foot side setback.  The

 9 subject property is 275 Summer Tanager, TMS

10 number 207-04-00-023.  The applicant is being

11 represented by Ms. Alice Lanham -- forgive me if

12 I mispronounced that -- property owners,

13 Christian Werner.  Subject property is

14 approximately 14,000 square feet, and this is

15 adjacent to the cul-de-sac of Summer -- Summer

16 Tanager.

17          The ordinance does define setback as a

18 required minimum distance, and this is from a lot

19 line or a street right-of-way or critical line.

20 And the ordinance defines a side setback as any

21 setback that's other than the rear or the front

22 setback.  Here's an image of that subject

23 property as stated that sits adjacent to the

24 cul-de-sac and actually backs up to the Kiawah

25 Island Parkway.
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 1          The applicant's plan does propose a new

 2 single-family structure on the site to include a

 3 rear pool.  And additionally, the proposed

 4 plans -- the front stairs that extends beyond the

 5 5-foot allowance is the reason of today's

 6 variance request.  The subject property is vacant

 7 as shown in the images.  It's heavily filled with

 8 mature trees and vegetation.  And this is shown

 9 on the site plan to the northwest -- or the west

10 end of the site is where the requested variance

11 for the stairs is located.

12          I'm going to review this staff --

13 criteria or staff review based on the criterias

14 that were outlined by staff.  A site visit was

15 conducted on February 3rd of 2021.  And at the

16 time, the following findings were brought to your

17 attention via the case materials.

18          In terms of criteria A, there may be

19 extraordinary and exceptional conditions to this

20 particular lot.  This is -- and due to the

21 required setbacks as well as -- as well as the

22 irregular shape of the lot.  It is a triangular

23 shape, and the existing vegetation on the site --

24 per the applicant's letter of intent, they also

25 understand that the lot has -- presents a lot of
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 1 challenges because it sits triangular shape and

 2 the cluster of three oaks in the upper right-hand

 3 corner which, per the limits, the useable barrier

 4 [ph] of the lot.

 5          The conditions -- criteria B, the

 6 conditions may be unique to the subject property

 7 and may not generally apply to other properties

 8 in the vicinity.  The subject property is

 9 irregular shape whereas properties within the

10 vicinity are more rectangular in shape.  Existing

11 structures in the vicinity may or may not have

12 some of the lot setback requirements, and that's

13 based on existing zoning standards.  The

14 applicant also stated that the lot's vicinity are

15 either large or are more rectangular in shape.

16          Criteria C, the application of the

17 ordinance to this particular property would

18 prohibit their construction of the residence as

19 the proposed stair does approach into the

20 setback.  That's the 25-foot required side

21 setback, and the applicant has shown within their

22 materials a diagram that shows the lot -- the

23 square footage of the lot that cannot be

24 utilized, which they have presented to be over a

25 quarter of the lot.
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 1          And then criteria D, the authorization

 2 of a variance may not be of substantial

 3 detriment.  It may not harm by granting of the

 4 variance the encroachment of the stair.  And then

 5 per the applicant's letter of intent, also note

 6 that the requested variance will place the house

 7 closer to lot 274, but there will be a

 8 significant distance between the houses due to

 9 the shape of the lots.  They've also provided a

10 GIS map that shows the approximate location and

11 shape of the lot.

12          And then finally, showing that the

13 encroachment is near facing the Kiawah Island

14 Parkway side of the site, and they have engaged

15 with the Architectural Review Board as one of the

16 suggestions for this location of the proposed

17 (inaudible).

18          The additional properties -- I mean, the

19 additional criteria, excuse me, criteria F --

20 criteria E, sorry, the establishment --

21 establishment of use not otherwise authorized.

22 It falls within that criteria that this use would

23 not allow the establishment of use not being

24 authorized.

25          Criteria F where this BZA may not
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 1 consider profitability when considering this

 2 variance request.

 3          And then criteria G, the need for the

 4 variance may not be the result of the applicant's

 5 own actions.  Since the applicant site is vacant,

 6 the proposed structure could be modified without

 7 the need of a variance.  However, the lot does

 8 contain several trees and mature vegetation, and

 9 the applicant letter has also stated that we need

10 to apply for this variance because of the shape

11 of the lot, the location of the oaks in the upper

12 right-hand corner, not because of any action

13 taken by Mr. Werner.

14          Criteria of this variance may not be

15 contrary to the public or neighborhood interest

16 may not adversely affect other property in the

17 vicinity and may not interfere with the harmony,

18 spirit, and intent.  The subject property sits

19 adjacent to Kiawah Island Parkway and the

20 cul-de-sac of Summer Tanager.  And then finally,

21 the Architectural Review Board did review the

22 particular project, and they granted conceptual

23 approval, and the applicant has also stated that

24 the project would not be contrary to the public

25 interest based upon the submitting of their



Kiawah Island BZA Meeting 16

Clark & Associates, Inc.

 1 materials.

 2          The final criteria, I, regarding

 3 conflict with the comprehensive plan, the

 4 applicant has stated that the granting of

 5 variance does not conflict with the comprehensive

 6 plan or the purposes of the ordinance.

 7          And so those are the criteria that was

 8 outlined in your materials.  You can find within

 9 the letter -- within the applicant's letter of

10 intent two diagrams that I didn't include in the

11 actual staff review, but those images were

12 referenced for your review.

13          Additionally included is the

14 Architectural Review Board conceptual review

15 letter.  We did have two -- two folks reach out

16 to staff regarding this particular application.

17 None of them provided official comments in

18 writing.  They were just curious to what was on

19 the site.  I provided them with the information

20 regarding to this meeting, so I'm not sure if

21 they have joined us just yet.  But that is all I

22 have for the first case.

23          Regarding the decisions, remember that

24 the BZA has the privy to approve, approve

25 conditions, or deny, and this is one that
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 1 pertains to this particular variance request.

 2          Can I pause there and then ask, has Joe

 3 joined us?

 4               MS. LAUGHLIN:  No, he hasn't, John.

 5               MR. TAYLOR:  No?  Okay.  So we have

 6 -- I'm going to pause here.  I do not want to

 7 move forward without our BZA attorney present.

 8 Just from a procedural standpoint, it would make

 9 it really difficult to -- if there is any

10 challenge to the particular case, from a

11 procedural standpoint, I think it would be out of

12 bounds, so I don't want to move forward until we

13 do -- have made contact with Joe to see where he

14 is.  It's a little bit unfortunate, but I want to

15 see if we can get him to join.  Just a moment.

16               MR. CASSIDY:  Why don't we break at

17 this point.  Don't anybody stray too far, and

18 John, I'll announce it when we have Joe on the

19 line.  How's that, John?

20               MR. TAYLOR:  That works,

21 Mr. Cassidy.  Thank you so much.

22               MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you.

23               (Recess.)

24               MR. ROSENFELD:  Interesting first

25 meeting.
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 1               MS. LAUGHLIN:  Hi, everyone.  We're

 2 still live, so if you need to do anything, just

 3 hide your screen or mute while we do this short

 4 break.

 5               MR. ROSENFELD:  By the way, my dog

 6 may make an appearance at some point during the

 7 meeting.  She comes to work with us every day,

 8 and you'll notice her because she's a 145-pound

 9 Great Dane.

10               MR. TAYLOR:  Joe will be joining us

11 very shortly, you guys.  Thank you for your

12 patience.

13               MR. BERNER:  Oh, that's wonderful.

14               MS. LAUGHLIN:  John, we have Joe

15 now.

16               MR. TAYLOR:  Awesome.  Thank you,

17 Keely.  Mr. Cassidy, just to kind of reset where

18 we are now -- and I've read into the first case

19 every -- I think -- I tried it with Joe just from

20 a procedural standpoint to make sure that we are

21 in accordance with the issues, so I think we can

22 move forward.  Otherwise, Joe, chime in to just

23 to share.  We have not sworn in anyone for

24 testimony.  I think we can do it -- do that.

25               MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  John, if you
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 1 would cease your screen sharing for a moment.  I

 2 think, Joe, that we probably ought to do this

 3 swearing in in three parts because there's so

 4 many people here.  So if -- if those who would

 5 like to speak with regard to the first case, the

 6 Summer Tanager case, would raise -- raise your

 7 hands, Joe will swear you in.

 8               MR. WILSON:  All right.  Do you

 9 affirm that the testimony you're about to give is

10 the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

11 truth so help you God?

12               MS. LANHAM:  I do.

13               MR. MINNER:  I do.

14               MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  I -- I think

15 in that case, we're ready to hear from -- from

16 the applicant, and that would be Ms. Lanham.

17               MS. LANHAM:  Okay.  As Mr. Taylor

18 informed you, this is a very unusual lot.  It's

19 not a terribly small lot, but considering the

20 shape and the location of the cluster of three

21 grand oaks in the upper right-hand corner, it's

22 seriously limited in what would be considered the

23 useable area of the lot.

24          In fact, if not for those oak trees, if

25 I was just looking at the shape of the lot
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 1 without any of the trees on the survey, I would

 2 have come up with something completely different

 3 with the house being pretty much parallel to the

 4 right property line and stepping down or the

 5 decks and pools, etcetera, towards the left.

 6          But the oaks definitely stand in the way

 7 of that type of arrangement.  And actually, it

 8 was one of the ARB members suggested rotating the

 9 house parallel to Kiawah Island Parkway, or

10 approximately parallel, and working it from

11 there.  And that is when we encountered the issue

12 of the steps going out into that side setback.

13          And on that side, however, the

14 neighboring house is all the way to the rear of

15 their site on the left so that this would not in

16 any way impact their lot.  The only thing it

17 might affect is the view from the cul-de-sac

18 itself.  And because it's the -- mostly the lower

19 portion of the stairs and there are several small

20 oak trees around that corner of the lot, which

21 could be saved and additional landscape screening

22 put in there, it would, you know, be barely

23 noticeable in the neighborhood.  And I believe

24 by, you know, developing this lot and saving

25 those oaks, they become more visible to the
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 1 neighborhood.

 2          When I first visited the lot, I didn't

 3 even realize they were there from the street.  I

 4 had to walk into the lot to see them, but now

 5 they should be visible to anyone driving down the

 6 street.  That was, you know, another point that

 7 it would highlight those and not in any way

 8 negatively impact the neighborhood.

 9               MR. CASSIDY:  Ms. Lanham, I

10 neglected at the beginning here to ask you to

11 state your name --

12               THE WITNESS:  Oh.

13               MR. CASSIDY:  -- and current

14 address, please.

15               MS. LANHAM:  Sorry.  Alice Lanham,

16 architect, 2978 Cane Slash Road, Johns Island.

17               MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, ma'am.

18 Any questions for Ms. Lanham?

19               MR. BERNER:  No.

20               MR. CASSIDY:  Hearing none, anyone

21 else who would like to speak?

22               MR. TAYLOR:  I think Mr. --

23 Mr. Minner may have wanted to make some comments.

24               MR. CASSIDY:  I did see him get

25 swear -- sworn in, yes.
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 1               MR. MINNER:  Yep.  Hi, everybody.

 2 Name is John Minner, address is 272 Summer

 3 Tanager, and I just had two quick questions.  One

 4 is I had an opportunity to speak to Mr. Taylor

 5 earlier.  He clarified a bunch of items, which

 6 was very helpful, and I appreciate his

 7 assistance.

 8          One concern is that the street itself

 9 has an exceptionally small footprint, and the

10 question is, does the setback affect the overall

11 character of the neighborhood given the

12 positioning of it?  And I do appreciate, Alice,

13 your taking into consideration the live oaks.

14               MS. LANHAM:  Well, really, it's

15 along the main part of the street of Summer

16 Tanager to maintain well over a 25-foot setback.

17 It's just right down in the corner at the

18 cul-de-sac where the steps go out more than

19 5 feet over the -- I should move.  My grandson is

20 here.

21          And, you know, as I said, in a

22 discussion with the landscape architect, we

23 walked around and feel like we can put a lot of

24 heavy landscape screening there to really

25 minimize the impact of those steps as they come
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 1 down close to the -- the street.

 2               MR. MINNER:  Thanks.

 3               MS. LANHAM:  Could we pull up the

 4 site plan?  Is that possible?

 5               MR. CASSIDY:  Sure.

 6               MS. LANHAM:  Ah, there we go.  Yes.

 7 As you can see, along the -- most of the street

 8 along the long edge of the triangle, we're well

 9 over 25 feet back, and it's just that -- the

10 little bit of the steps down in the lower

11 left-hand corner.  And I don't know how big your

12 screen is.  On mine, they just look like little

13 dots.  But -- oh, there we go.  That's great.

14          You can see now there's a number of oak

15 trees in that corner and then, with some

16 understory planting, would provide significant

17 screening for those steps to where, you know,

18 they wouldn't be visible from the other houses or

19 really at any point except maybe when you're

20 driving through around the cul-de-sac itself.

21          So we just felt like that was -- if we

22 were going to, you know, go anywhere over a

23 setback line, that was the corner to do it where

24 it would have the least effect on the

25 neighborhood in general.
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 1               MR. CASSIDY:  Before I ask for any

 2 other comments, let me just mention that comments

 3 should be directed to the Board either in favor

 4 or in opposition.  If there's a question that

 5 needs to be answered, we'll direct it to -- to

 6 the applicant.  Are there any other comments?

 7 Seeing none, I'd entertain a motion on this

 8 application.

 9               MR. ROSENFELD:  Frank -- Frank, can

10 I ask a question?

11               MR. CASSIDY:  Sure.

12               MR. ROSENFELD:  What is the width

13 of the staircase?

14               MS. LANHAM:  5 feet.

15               MR. ROSENFELD:  Has any thought

16 been entertained to bring it to be slightly

17 narrower?

18               MS. LANHAM:  I could ask the ARB if

19 that would be allowable.  They usually don't like

20 them to be -- you know, for front stairs, entry

21 stairs to be narrower, but they might let me pull

22 them down to maybe 4 feet or something.  I could

23 ask.

24               MR. ROSENFELD:  So --

25               MS. LANHAM:  That wasn't mentioned,
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 1 so -- get down.  Come on.

 2               MR. ROSENFELD:  (Inaudible) --

 3               MR. CASSIDY:  Correct me if I'm

 4 wrong, Mrs. -- Ms. Lanham, but is it correct that

 5 the entire stairwell is in the -- is in the

 6 setback area?  Is that correct?  So making them

 7 narrower doesn't -- it only improves that by a

 8 foot; is that correct?

 9               MS. LANHAM:  That would be correct,

10 yes.

11               MR. ROSENFELD:  And the -- you're

12 saying that where the stairwell is is the front

13 of the house, correct?

14               MS. LANHAM:  Yes.

15               MR. ROSENFELD:  The front of the

16 house faces Summer Tanager?

17               MS. LANHAM:  Yes, into the

18 cul-de-sac.

19               MR. TAYLOR:  Mr. Cassidy, could I

20 also interject just momentarily?  I want to just

21 remind you also that the ordinance does grant any

22 open stair into building entrances a 5-foot

23 allowance.  So even if the stair extended only

24 5 feet beyond the setback, that would be

25 approvable administratively, so just keep that in
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 1 mind.

 2               MR. CASSIDY:  Now I'm confused.

 3               MS. LANHAM:  Essentially asking for

 4 an extra 4 feet.

 5               MR. CASSIDY:  How -- how far --

 6 there's the setback, then there's the 5-foot

 7 allowance.  How far beyond that 5-foot allowance

 8 does this staircase extend?

 9               MS. LANHAM:  4 feet.

10               MR. CASSIDY:  I see.  Okay.

11               MS. LANHAM:  So instead of being --

12 well, it would be 20 feet with the allowable

13 5 feet, but now it's 16 feet off the property

14 line.

15               MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you.  Other

16 comments?  Okay.  I'd entertain any motions that

17 anyone would care to make on this application.

18 Ben?

19               MR. FARABEE:  Yes.  I move that we

20 approve this application based upon the fact the

21 nature of the lot, the configuration of the lot

22 as well as the applicant's attempt to preserve

23 those three trees, none of which -- it already

24 looks like it's in danger, but I would support

25 it.
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 1               MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, Ben.

 2               MS. KULICK:  I second that, John --

 3 Frank.

 4               MR. BERNER:  I second.  I have no

 5 problems with it.

 6               MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, Wendy.  Is

 7 there any further discussion?  All in favor,

 8 please say aye.

 9               (All respond aye.)

10               MR. CASSIDY:  Opposed?  The motion

11 carries unanimously, and the variance request is

12 approved.  Thank you, everyone.

13               MS. LANHAM:  Thank you.

14               MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  Let's move on

15 to our second case, which is BZA21-000001 at

16 217 Glen Abbey.  I'd now ask for the Glen Abbey

17 people to turn on their -- their cameras, and --

18 and I'd ask those who wish to speak to raise your

19 hands.  And Joe, if you would swear them in.

20               MR. WILSON:  Do you affirm that the

21 testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

22 whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help

23 you God?

24               MS. GALASSO:  Yes, I do.

25               MR. THOELE:  Yes.  Yes, I do.
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 1               MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  Thank you,

 2 everyone.  John, you're going to present the

 3 case.

 4               MR. TAYLOR:  Thank you,

 5 Mr. Cassidy.  Our second case today,

 6 BZA21-000001, is a variance request.  This

 7 particular variance request is a setback variance

 8 for approximately 57.2 square feet for a pool

 9 addition at the subject property of 217 --

10 217 Glen Abbey, tax map number 264-14-00-067.

11          The subject property does fall within

12 the R-1 zoning district and is under the purview

13 of the Architectural Review Board.  It does sit

14 adjacent to a golf course and to the south.  The

15 adjacent property is also R-1.  There is open

16 space as well located on the side adjacent to the

17 east, and the subject property is what we

18 identify as a flag lot.

19          The ordinance does define setback as a

20 required minimum distance from the lot line, and

21 the ordinance defines front setback and rear

22 setback as those measured from either the street

23 right-of-way or rear lot line.  The ordinance

24 also grant that a pool shall be set back a

25 distance of not less than 10 feet from all lot
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 1 lines, except that a pool that is elevated where

 2 it needs to meet the standard building setbacks.

 3          The applicant did submit to the

 4 Architectural Review Board in which they were

 5 granted approval for this particular variance

 6 request.  And here are a few images of the site.

 7 The area, you'll actually notice a flag lot off

 8 of Glen Abbey, the adjacency to the golf course.

 9          Per records of Charleston County, the

10 subject property was constructed I believe in

11 1994, and I will review the staff findings based

12 upon the criteria submitted, based upon the

13 evidence submitted.

14          When it pertains to the first criteria,

15 criteria A, which speaks to exceptional and

16 extraordinary conditions, there may be extra --

17 extraordinary and exceptional conditions

18 pertaining to this particular lot due to the

19 required setbacks and existing mature trees and

20 vegetation on the site.

21          In addition, the applicant has stated

22 that on the north -- on the north side, the

23 property does extend 77 feet from the house, and

24 this would present itself as a perfect location

25 for a large pool.  However, the whole area is
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 1 heavily wooded with mature live oaks, magnolia,

 2 and palm trees.  The next logical location

 3 suitable for a pool addition would be in the

 4 southeast corner of the existing home.  The

 5 proposed design attached locates the pool in an

 6 area where no trees will be impacted.  Here's the

 7 site plan that's showing the proposed location of

 8 the pool.

 9          The criteria B where the conditions may

10 be unique to the subject property, they may not

11 generally apply to other properties in the

12 vicinity.  This subject property is -- falls

13 under the R-1 zoning district, and the remaining

14 adjacency properties fall in the parks and

15 recreational zoning district to the east, north,

16 and to the west.  Existing structures may have

17 similar setback standards based on the current

18 ordinance.

19          And additionally, the letter of intent

20 that has been provided by the applicant, they

21 share that the original owner ahead of its time

22 was invested in the preservation of Kiawah's

23 natural habitat when building a house and his

24 care for preservation guidance decision on the

25 location of the house and the lot and at that
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 1 time did not foresee adding a pool; therefore,

 2 did not take into consideration when creating the

 3 footprint of the house.  The applicant has also

 4 shared that this particular lot is very private

 5 with adjacency of one property, 216 Glen Abbey.

 6          Criteria C speaks to the ordinance that

 7 217 would prohibit the construction of the pool

 8 into the required setback.  The pool is elevated

 9 more than 4 feet and it requires -- and is

10 required to meet the standard building setbacks.

11 However, it does not unreasonably restrict the

12 utilization of the property per the applicant's

13 letter of intent.  Due to the heavy landscape of

14 the property, the pool would require an extensive

15 cleaning system.  Based on the recommendations

16 from the pool -- contractor of the pool, which

17 are instructed within the setbacks, it would not

18 guarantee a pool free of debris.

19          Additionally, the given boundary limits,

20 the pool would not have a walkable perimeter.

21 Only side -- the only side where it would be --

22 where it -- excuse me, the only side where it

23 would be possible to stand to access the pool

24 would be on the deck side.  This configuration

25 will make it almost impossible to perform a



Kiawah Island BZA Meeting 32

Clark & Associates, Inc.

 1 simple manual skimming.

 2          We also would like to point out that

 3 proposed design is kept with the width of the

 4 pool at the time the minimum is mentioned.  The

 5 useable pool width has been designed at 8 feet in

 6 line with the existing deck, and the space

 7 projection beyond the setback is solely utilized

 8 for the catch basin.

 9          Criteria D, the authorization of

10 variance may not be of substantial detriment to

11 the adjacent properties or the public good, and

12 the proposed setback encroachment is adjacent to

13 the golf course.  Since the encroachment is in

14 the rear yard, only the neighbors across the golf

15 course -- across -- excuse me, since the adjacent

16 -- since the encroachment in the rear yard, only

17 the neighbors across the golf course and across

18 the pond would affected -- would be affected by

19 the granting of the variance.  This is

20 approximately greater than 250 feet greater than

21 a typical rear yard setback between adjoining

22 properties.  And the applicant has also shared

23 that there would be no detriment to the

24 neighboring property and no impact on the view.

25          Criteria E, granting of the variance
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 1 would not allow the establishment of use not

 2 otherwise permitted.

 3          And then criteria F, the BZA may not

 4 consider profitability, and the applicant has

 5 also shared that this will not result in any

 6 profitable utilization of the property.  It would

 7 allow for more comprehensive use of the property.

 8          And then criteria G where it's the needs

 9 of the actions and the result of the applicant's

10 own action, the existing residence is conforming

11 to lot standards both including setbacks and lot

12 coverage.  The existing structure could be

13 maintained.  However, the applicant has stated

14 that the house was built in 1983.  Following the

15 ordinance at that time, they purchased the house

16 in 20 -- in April 2020.  There had been no work

17 done by a set result in the -- for the requested

18 variance.

19          Criteria H speaks to the neighborhood

20 interest and not adversely affect other property

21 in the vicinity.  And as stated, the

22 Architectural Review Board did approve the

23 variance request.  They stated, quote, the

24 variance to add a pool and stair over the west

25 side setback is approved given the home's
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 1 original placement preserved multiple live oak

 2 trees to the north, and those trees would be

 3 impacted for the pool to be located within the

 4 bit of area to the north.

 5          The applicant's letter of intent also

 6 states that we believe we -- that the Board

 7 should grant the variance, and the project will

 8 be in harmony with the neighborhood and would not

 9 interfere or affect other property in the

10 vicinity.

11          The final criteria there, not

12 substantially conflicting with the comprehensive

13 plan.  As stated in your materials, a variance

14 may not substantially conflict with the

15 comprehensive plan or the ordinance.  It does

16 fall under the required maximum lot coverage,

17 33 percent, sitting at approximately

18 30.2 percent.  And the applicant has stated also

19 that this would not conflict with the

20 comprehensive plan.

21          Just a reminder, in your materials, I'll

22 go through several additional documents that were

23 provided for your review.  Again, here is the

24 location of the pool.  The catch -- pool catch

25 basement -- basin that includes approximately
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 1 260 square feet, which that would include for

 2 about -- account for about 1.2 percent of the lot

 3 coverage.  Many of the provided numbers and specs

 4 on the actual pool was included in your

 5 materials.

 6          Again, here's another exhibit showing

 7 the location of the pool sizing.  Applicant also

 8 provided some 3D shots and additional images or

 9 renderings to show the existing and proposed

10 location of the pool.  Here, you see sort of an

11 aerial shot.  Again, existing -- the same corner,

12 southwest corner, existing and proposed of the

13 proposed pool aligning with the existing deck.

14          That provides a completion of the staff

15 review.  To my notes, there were no property

16 owners that reached out in regards to -- adjacent

17 property owners that reached out in regards to

18 this particular application.  On the line are the

19 project representative, Mr. Andrew Thoele -- I

20 probably screwed it up -- as well as Ms. Maria,

21 who is the property owner.

22          And so that concludes my particular

23 staff review.  Remember that the Board of Zoning

24 -- Board of Zoning Appeals may approve, approve

25 of conditions, or deny the case, and this is for
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 1 the reduction of the required 30-foot side

 2 setback.  This is for approximately 57.25 square

 3 feet for the pool addition.  Thank you.

 4               MR. CASSIDY:  Questions for John?

 5 I have one question, John.  If you could pull up

 6 that Blue Haven Pools picture.

 7               MR. TAYLOR:  That one?

 8               MR. CASSIDY:  That's the -- just

 9 passed it.  So the variances with regard to that

10 -- that thin rectangle to the -- that's right --

11 to the left of this -- of this diagram and what's

12 to the left of the property is the Turtle Point

13 Golf -- Golf Course, correct?

14               MR. TAYLOR:  Yes.

15               MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  Any other

16 questions for John?

17               MR. ROSENFELD:  John, on one of the

18 diagrams I have, it shows a new deck stair.  Has

19 that been removed from the proposal?

20               MR. TAYLOR:  You said in one of the

21 exhibits it shows a new deck stair?

22               MR. ROSENFELD:  Right.

23               MR. TAYLOR:  I may let the

24 applicant speak to that.  I'm not sure exactly

25 where you're reference -- referencing.
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 1               MR. ROSENFELD:  Okay.

 2 (Inaudible) --

 3               MR. TAYLOR:  Oh.  Is it this --

 4 this image there?

 5               MR. ROSENFELD:  On that image, the

 6 top right corner.  No, go back.  The one that was

 7 in color.  That one.  Now move the cursor to the

 8 right.

 9               MR. TAYLOR:  This area?

10               MR. ROSENFELD:  (Inaudible).

11 That's a home deck stair, which to me is also

12 encroaching in the area.  And --

13               MR. TAYLOR:  Yeah, so the -- the --

14 the --

15               MR. ROSENFELD:  -- they have an

16 existing deck stair, so...

17               MR. TAYLOR:  So the ordinance

18 allows an encroachment of open deck into this

19 setback granting of 5 feet, so that would -- that

20 would not need necessarily approval.

21               MR. ROSENFELD:  So in other words,

22 if we approve the extension for the pool, the

23 deck stair could be brought in on its own?

24               MR. TAYLOR:  This particular

25 request is narrowed to the pool itself.  The --
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 1 the new deck that's being proposed is not within

 2 this particular application, but it would meet

 3 the requirements of the zoning ordinance.

 4               MR. ROSENFELD:  In other words, if

 5 we approve the extension of the property line for

 6 the pool, then it follows that the deck stair

 7 could then simply be put in without a request for

 8 a variance?

 9               MR. TAYLOR:  We -- if I understand

10 your question correctly, the -- the new deck

11 that's there would -- you're asking whether or

12 not that would be part of the application that

13 you're approving?

14               MR. ROSENFELD:  Yes.

15               MR. TAYLOR:  So you are

16 specifically granting relief from the pool

17 addition.  The new deck stairs that is being

18 proposed would meet the requirements of the

19 zoning ordinance without the need of a variance.

20               MR. CASSIDY:  If I may, Larry, the

21 -- if we weren't talking about this pool at all

22 today, there would be no need to request the

23 variance for that stairwell because that's in

24 keeping with the -- with the variance as it

25 stands.
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 1               MR. ROSENFELD:  You wouldn't --

 2 you'd come out 5 feet from the steps?

 3               MR. CASSIDY:  That's right.  That's

 4 -- that's allowed under the -- under the

 5 regulations.

 6               MR. ROSENFELD:  Okay.

 7               MR. CASSIDY:  Other questions?

 8               MS. GALASSO:  If I can interject.

 9 That's correct, because we spoke to the Kiawah

10 Island --

11               MR. CASSIDY:  I'm sorry, ma'am.

12 Let's --

13               MS. GALASSO:  I'm sorry.  Oh, I'm

14 sorry.  I'm Maria Giovanna Galasso.  I'm the

15 owner of the property.

16               MR. CASSIDY:  Let's just -- if you

17 could wait just one second.

18               MS. GALASSO:  Oh, yeah.

19               MR. CASSIDY:  We're still -- we're

20 working on questions about John's presentation.

21               MS. GALASSO:  Oh, I was trying to

22 answer Mr. Larry's question.  That was all.

23 That's it.

24               MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  Any other

25 questions for John?  Okay.  Hearing none, we'll
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 1 now hear from the applicant.  Let's see.  Is that

 2 Ms. DeGonzague?  I'm sorry if I'm pronouncing

 3 that improperly.  No, I'm sorry.  It's -- I'm

 4 wrong about that.  The project representative is

 5 Mr. Thoele?

 6               MR. THOELE:  Yes, sir.  It's Andrew

 7 Thoele.  Thank you.  I'm representing Maria as

 8 well.  She's on the line.  Maria -- Maria

 9 Giovanna Galasso.  She's the homeowner.  I'm with

10 the Island Company and Will Shiver.  We're

11 located in the Bohicket Marina at 1900B Andell

12 Bluff.

13          I think Maria was getting ready to

14 clarify something for Larry, and I think that

15 that was cleared up by Mr. Taylor as well.  And,

16 again, we're just proposing to encroach on that

17 30-foot setback with the pool trough or the catch

18 basin for the infinity edge.  Maria had put

19 together that comprehensive list of why she

20 believes this variance should be approved, and I

21 think that it has covered just about every

22 aspect.

23          If anybody has any additional questions,

24 I'm happy to answer, and Maria is also very

25 knowledgeable on the topic as she's actually the
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 1 one who originally proposed to put this pool in

 2 this location based on the lot, its location, its

 3 layout, its foliage, etcetera.  And that's it

 4 from me.

 5               MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you.

 6 Ms. Malullo [sic], would you care to add

 7 anything?

 8               MS. GALASSO:  No.  I just want to,

 9 you know, thank you, first of all, for having me

10 here.  Thank you, Mr. Taylor, for the

11 introduction of the case here.  I think, again, I

12 just want to point out that the only reason why

13 we're asking for this variance is because we are

14 preserving the natural habitat of the property.

15          As you can see on the top here, this is

16 all part of our property here.  We would have

17 that -- plenty of space to put a fairly large

18 pool there.  But, again, to preserve the nature

19 of the land, we are opting for a small footprint,

20 and the only area outside of the edge is the

21 catch basin.  This (inaudible) need then an

22 actual -- actual items.

23          You know, the Architectural Review

24 Board, they came to the site, and they were

25 actually the one to suggest that we do that, you
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 1 know, that (inaudible) possible.  As -- I think

 2 that, as specified in the letter, the only area

 3 where we would stand is right here, but it's not

 4 available (inaudible) where you can actually walk

 5 around, so that's the only place.  So that's the

 6 only place where you will be able to perform

 7 clearing of the water.  So that -- in case we

 8 would not be approved, we will need an intensive,

 9 you know, infiltration system.  But even

10 (inaudible) stated, that, of course, it would not

11 be able to keep up with the continuous falling of

12 the foliage from the tree around the pool.

13          So, again, our only really goal is to

14 preserve the landscaping of the property as much

15 as possible.  That's it.

16               MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, ma'am.

17 Any questions for the applicants?

18               MR. FARABEE:  I have one.

19               MR. CASSIDY:  Yes, Ben.

20               MR. FARABEE:  Is the existing wood

21 walkway to continue to exist?

22               MR. THOELE:  Yes, it is.

23               MR. FARABEE:  Thank you.

24               MR. CASSIDY:  Other questions?

25 Anyone else wish to speak?  Seeing no one, I
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 1 would entertain any motions that anyone would

 2 care to make.

 3               MS. KULICK:  Frank --

 4               MR. ROSENFELD:  I would make a

 5 motion to approve.

 6               MS. KULICK:  Larry, would you

 7 include attaching the note in the application

 8 about additional landscaping be required?

 9               MR. ROSENFELD:  I personally would,

10 yes.  But I assume considering that Ms.

11 Giovanna's comments about maintaining the beauty

12 of the land, I assume that she would landscape it

13 anyway.

14               MS. GALASSO:  We -- yeah, I've been

15 --

16               MR. ROSENFELD:  I don't want to

17 make assumptions.  They're usually crazy.  But

18 the way she spoke, I really believe she would

19 consider the beautification of the property, and

20 I have a feeling that whatever she does there

21 will be landscaped well.

22               MS. KULICK:  I don't disagree with

23 you, Larry, but I think for the record, we ought

24 to make sure that it's included in our motion.

25               MR. ROSENFELD:  I agree.
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 1               MS. GALASSO:  Yeah.  We had

 2 actually already included a proposed landscaping

 3 from a landscaping architect to the Architectural

 4 Review Board, so we have covered that.

 5               MR. ROSENFELD:  Okay, Wendy.  Then

 6 I will amend my motion to add with additional

 7 landscaping.

 8               MS. KULICK:  And then I will second

 9 it.

10               MR. ROSENFELD:  Thank you.

11               MR. CASSIDY:  Any further

12 discussion?  All in favor, please say aye.

13               (All respond aye.)

14               MR. CASSIDY:  Opposed?  Motion

15 carries unanimously, and we approve this -- this

16 variance in keeping with the character of the lot

17 and the need to preserve the vegetation on the

18 lot.  So thank you, everyone.

19               MS. GALASSO:  Thank you very much.

20               MR. THOELE:  Thank you.

21               MR. CASSIDY:  All right.  Let's --

22 let's move on to our next case, which is

23 BZA21-000002 at 41A Eugenia.  Let's have those

24 folks turn on their cameras, and let's -- those

25 who are going to speak, please raise your hands,
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 1 and Joe will swear you in.

 2               MR. WILSON:  Do you affirm that the

 3 testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

 4 whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help

 5 you God?

 6               MR. HUEY:  I do.

 7               MR. KLEINE:  Yes.

 8               MR. CASSIDY:  Okay, thank you,

 9 folks.  So first we will hear from John on this

10 case.

11               MR. TAYLOR:  Thank you,

12 Mr. Cassidy.  Final case of today, BZA21-000002.

13 The subject property is 41A Eugenia Avenue.  The

14 applicant is Mr. Mark Kleine, property owner,

15 being represented by Nicole Vieth and Bill Huey

16 of Bill Huey and Associates.  The subject

17 property does fall within the R-1 zoning district

18 and is approximately 14,486 square feet in size.

19 The subject property is located within the

20 developed lands and is not under the purview of

21 the Architectural Review Board.

22          Today's request is a variance to

23 increase the maximum allowable lot coverage.  Lot

24 coverage for the subject property is 33 percent,

25 and the request is to increase that lot coverage
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 1 by approximately 2.15 percent, or 311 square

 2 feet, to approximately 35.15 percent, and this is

 3 for a new single-family residence.

 4          To give you the ordinance requirements,

 5 reminder that lot coverage is the percentage of

 6 lot area that is impervious to stormwater,

 7 including buildings, decks, walls, driveways,

 8 front walkways, and other pervious surfaces as

 9 defined by the ordinance and determined by the

10 planning director.  And the ordinance specifies a

11 maximum lot coverage percentage for each zoning

12 district where there are some exclusions from lot

13 coverage, and those exclusions would include at

14 grade boardwalks and landscape retaining walls

15 that are below 3 feet in height or the access

16 drive located on the pole of a flag lot as

17 defined by the ordinance.

18          Additionally, the ordinance does grant

19 allowable increase of maximum lot coverage.  This

20 would include areas not defined by the ordinance

21 -- I'm sorry, driveways not defined by the

22 ordinance that utilize pervious materials and

23 pervious walks and patios, raised courtyards and

24 planters created by walls 3 feet or less.  For

25 this particular subject property, 33 percent lot
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 1 coverage is the maximum lot coverage allowed, and

 2 that corresponds to an allowable increase of

 3 20 percent.

 4          There are two more definitions that I

 5 think -- that are relevant to today's case that I

 6 want to refocus.  The ordinance defines

 7 impervious surface.  This is any material which

 8 prevents, impedes, or slows infiltration or

 9 absorption of water directly into the ground at

10 the rate of absorption of vegetation bearing

11 soils, including buildings, asphalt, concrete,

12 gravel, and other surfaces as determined by the

13 planning director.

14          Also, driveways.  A driveway is defined

15 as a minimum 10-foot path -- vehicular travel

16 way, rather, of any surface treatment, whether

17 pervious or impervious, from the property line to

18 the garage.  This includes guest parking as well

19 as required backup and turnaround areas for safe

20 vehicular movement as determined by the planning

21 director.

22          Within your materials are several

23 exhibits.  What I want to do is refer to just a

24 few images.  41A, again, we are sitting in R-1

25 zoning district adjacent to the beach.  Subject
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 1 property is vacant and sits adjacent to one home

 2 to the west and another vacant lot to the east.

 3          Just also in your materials, I've

 4 included a note that, for those of you on the

 5 Board, appears to (inaudible) members, applicant

 6 applied for a variance in 2020 requesting relief

 7 of approximately 3.57 percent from the maximum

 8 allowable lot coverage.  That proposal of the lot

 9 coverage for that request was approximately

10 39.04 percent, including total primary lot

11 coverage of 36.57 percent.  And that request was

12 denied by the Board.

13          Today's request asks for relief of

14 approximately 2.15 percent from the maximum

15 allowable lot coverage, and this equates to

16 approximately a 1.42, or 205 square feet,

17 reduction in the primary lot coverage from that

18 previous proposal.  A site visit was conducted,

19 and at the time, that findings, I will outline

20 that.  It pertains to the criteria.  Essentially

21 just from a high level, that house was shifted.

22 That's how you got the decrease in lot coverage

23 pertaining to the actual driveway.

24          When it comes to the criteria, criteria

25 A, there are extraordinary and exceptional



Kiawah Island BZA Meeting 49

Clark & Associates, Inc.

 1 conditions to the -- to the -- to the particular

 2 piece of property here at 41A Eugenia.  There may

 3 not be extraordinary and exceptional conditions

 4 pertaining to the subject property.  The subject

 5 property is currently vacant.  However, per the

 6 applicant's letter of intent, 41A Eugenia is

 7 situated next to a property that has a very large

 8 7,321 heated and cooled square foot home.  In

 9 addition to the home, there's an extensive raised

10 pool and pool deck at the furthest rear of the

11 lot.  And additionally, there's a large grade

12 change between our client's property and the

13 neighbor's property towards the rear.  And by

14 allowing the internal draining driveway, we will

15 be able to situate the proposed home of

16 41A Eugenia so that the owners can achieve some

17 views from the neighboring elevated pool deck.

18          Pertaining to criteria B, the conditions

19 may not -- may -- the conditions may be unique to

20 the subject property and may not generally apply

21 to other properties in the vicinity.  The

22 property is located R-1 zoning district, and

23 adjacent properties are also located within the

24 R-1 zoning district as both to the east and to

25 the west.  Per the applicant's letter of intent,
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 1 quote, the existing neighboring home was

 2 constructed in or about 2001, and we believe the

 3 size of the elevation is only -- structure is not

 4 compliant with the current zoning ordinance, but

 5 also noting, although not confirmed, and

 6 therefore not a typical condition of most

 7 properties as well as a significant grade change,

 8 which is rare in the Lowcountry.

 9          Criteria C, the application of the

10 ordinance of 41A Eugenia prohibited the

11 construction of proposed single-family home.  It

12 does exceed the maximum allowable lot coverage

13 and does not unreasonably restrict the

14 utilization of property as the subject property

15 is currently vacant.  Per the applicant's letter

16 of intent, due to the elevation and the size of

17 the pool of 39 Eugenia, the typical views of the

18 oceanfront property are limited, should the

19 structure be required to be more towards the

20 street due to the driveway material

21 interpretation.

22          Criteria D, the authorization of the

23 variance may not be of substantial detriment or

24 the public -- to the adjacent properties or the

25 public good.  The proposed plan provided pervious
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 1 driveway material utilizing an internal catchment

 2 system.  The character of the zoning district may

 3 be harmed by the granting of the variance with

 4 the increase in lot coverage beyond the allowable

 5 maximum lot coverage.  The applicant's letter of

 6 intent has stated, quote, we believe that

 7 (inaudible) draining pervious driveway would be

 8 substantial improvement to the adjacent

 9 properties by capturing the water within the lot

10 and allow it to infiltrate into the land slowly.

11 This would prevent water runoff into the street

12 during a rainfall event.  The clients have -- the

13 clients have been working with Mr. Barkley, owner

14 39 [ph], who has agreed to allow the clients'

15 southeast corner -- southwest corner of their

16 house to be 12 feet less -- 12 feet or less

17 closer to the ocean than the northeast corner of

18 the Barkleys' existing home.

19          Criteria E, granting of the variance

20 would not allow the establishment of the use not

21 otherwise permitted.  Extend a physically

22 nonconforming use of land or change the zoning

23 district boundaries.  Should the BZA approve the

24 increase in primary lot coverage, this variance

25 would not allow the establishment of use not
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 1 otherwise permitted.  It would not extend

 2 physically and nonconforming use of land and

 3 would not change the zoning district boundaries.

 4          Criteria F, BZA may not consider

 5 profitability in the variance.  The applicant

 6 stated the variance would not be considered so

 7 the property may be utilized for profit.

 8 However, the need for the variance may be the

 9 result of the applicant's own actions.  As

10 stated, the subject property is vacant, and the

11 structure and site could be redesigned without

12 the need of a variance to meet the current lot

13 coverage standards.  Per the applicant's letter

14 of intent, the home is in the planning stages, so

15 we're not asking for a variance (inaudible).

16          Criteria H would not be contrary to the

17 public.  The staff states the granting of the

18 variance may be contrary to the public or

19 neighborhood interest and may adversely affect

20 the property in the vicinity and may not

21 interfere with the harmony, spirit, intent, and

22 purposes of these regulations.  The subject

23 property is not under the purview of the

24 Architectural Review Board, and the applicant has

25 stated that we believe that should -- we believe
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 1 should the Board grant a variance, the project

 2 will be in the harmony with the neighborhood and

 3 will not interfere with or affect other property

 4 in the vicinity but hopefully improve the water

 5 management of the area.

 6          Criteria I, the final criteria, which

 7 the granting of the variance does not

 8 substantially conflict with the comprehensive

 9 plan or the zoning ordinance.  It may not consist

10 -- may not substantially conflict with the

11 comprehensive plan or the zoning ordinance.  The

12 applicant's proposed plan does exceed the maximum

13 allowable lot coverage of 33 percent.  However,

14 per the applicant's letter of intent, we

15 understand from conversations with Mr. Taylor,

16 the City is working on an amendment to the

17 comprehensive plans that are handled.  Stormwater

18 management, we believe that by containing water

19 from our property within the lot, we are not just

20 (inaudible) but helping to be pro-active to that

21 plan.

22          Within your materials, I also want to

23 note that there were several exhibits provided,

24 and so just for the record, the supplementary --

25 supplementary packet that included a number of
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 1 letters, some individuals looking to participate,

 2 I'm not sure if all of those individuals are on

 3 today, we did receive letters either in

 4 opposition or support of the application.

 5          And that concludes the staff review.  If

 6 there are any questions, I'll entertain those

 7 now.

 8               MR. CASSIDY:  I have a few

 9 questions, John.

10               MR. TAYLOR:  Okay.

11               MR. CASSIDY:  The -- the

12 applicant's letter states at one point, we

13 understand that the planning director has agreed

14 to interpret our engineered system as completely

15 pervious.  Is that a correct statement?

16               MR. TAYLOR:  So we -- we discussed

17 this several times.  The actual interpretation of

18 pervious based on it being able to allow water to

19 percolate to the site, there is no official -- by

20 -- by ordinance, there is no official allowance

21 by what the -- what is pervious or impervious.

22 The definition of driveway does allow -- does not

23 allow it to be calculated towards pervious.

24          So based on that statement, yes, we

25 would agree that -- or I would agree that based
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 1 on a pre and post interpretation of water being

 2 able to subdue into soils, that it would be a

 3 pervious material, yes.

 4               MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  But in your

 5 review, you included the driveway on the primary

 6 lot coverage even though it's fully pervious?

 7               MR. TAYLOR:  Yes.

 8               MR. CASSIDY:  And the reason for

 9 that -- the reason the driveways were originally

10 included in primary lot coverage is because of

11 the -- because of the potential for -- for

12 compaction, and thus, no longer being completely

13 pervious.  The applicant is -- is saying that

14 their engineered driveway system, that would --

15 that would not take place, that it would --

16 compaction would never be an issue.

17          But as I understand it, John, for you --

18 in order for you to remove a driveway of this

19 sort from primary lot coverage calculations would

20 require some action by the planning commission;

21 is that correct?

22               MR. TAYLOR:  So we have nothing

23 built into the zoning ordinance that would give a

24 sort of engineered calculation of what would be

25 allowed from an engineering standpoint of
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 1 pervious/impervious surfaces to stormwater

 2 management (inaudible).  So as it's defined in

 3 the zoning ordinance, whether a driveway is

 4 pervious or impervious, meaning whether water

 5 matriculates into the soil or does not

 6 matriculate through into the soil, we calculate

 7 that towards primary lot coverage, meaning that

 8 number is essentially equated to any other area

 9 on the site that would be improved.  So if it's

10 under roof structure, it would be calculated the

11 same way.

12          Reason being, you alluded to it, over

13 time, compaction is one of those ideals -- or one

14 of those results of impervious material just that

15 in the current zoning ordinance, we do not have a

16 metric to give pervious materials as some other

17 jurisdictions may have an actual definition or

18 some metric to give impervious -- pervious to

19 define that -- what that number may be of how

20 fast water may matriculate into the site.

21          As stated in the materials, stormwater

22 management in addition to a lot of the flood

23 mitigation efforts on the island, that would take

24 some amendments from a greater standpoint of

25 involving many stakeholders, including on island,
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 1 Architectural Review Board, the -- looking at

 2 development agreements as well as our planning

 3 commission who would make a recommendation.  That

 4 actually would -- approval would come through

 5 town counsel.

 6          That is, today, as this is being

 7 interpreted and applied to today's ordinance, we

 8 can't necessarily look at a future ordinance that

 9 would make a decision on today's ordinance.  But

10 as of today, we don't have anything that's in the

11 zoning ordinance that would give a specific

12 definition to a rate flow or something of that

13 nature.

14               MR. CASSIDY:  I guess speaking for

15 myself, I encourage the planning commission and

16 other entities to look at this style of a -- of

17 engineered driveway solutions since it appears to

18 -- to assist in managing stormwater, but I

19 understand where we're at today.

20          Other questions --

21               MR. BERNER:  Frank, I had --

22               MR. CASSIDY:  Yeah, sure, Russ.  Go

23 ahead.

24               MR. BERNER:  I'm a licensed

25 professional engineer, and these kind of
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 1 system -- the percolating system will work in

 2 certain locations.  One of which I do not believe

 3 will work is a property so close to the beach --

 4 well, particularly an oceanfront property.

 5 Percolating concrete does not have sand, which

 6 gives it the (inaudible) and does actually allow

 7 water to percolate through it.  But it's readily

 8 going to be clogged in an oceanfront environment.

 9 I actually don't think it should be excluded from

10 the lot coverage for that reason.

11          Significant maintenance can be done, but

12 I don't know there's a way we can get a

13 maintenance bond of some sort to ensure that

14 occurs because within a couple of years, two or

15 three years, windblown sand will -- will clog it

16 up.  So I do have that concern with respect to

17 use of this concrete on an oceanfront

18 environment.

19               MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you.

20               MR. BERNER:  I also have a question

21 to John with respect to the drawing that you

22 showed earlier with respect to calculation of the

23 lot coverage.  There's a -- if you can go back.

24 There it is.  You have --

25               MR. TAYLOR:  This one?
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 1               MR. BERNER:  Yes, sir.  I'm just

 2 trying to understand, why would pervious pavers

 3 be excluded from the lot coverage calculation

 4 leading to 35.15 percent?

 5               MR. TAYLOR:  So the pervious

 6 pavers, the ordinance does allow a few

 7 exceptions, so aggregate [ph] pervious pavers are

 8 one of those things that would not count towards

 9 the primary lot coverage.  I'm going to give you

10 the section of the ordinance that speaks to that.

11 Essentially the -- there's a number of exclusions

12 beyond essentially the building footprint that

13 allows -- when I spoke of the allowable increase,

14 this is one of those things that you would be

15 able to go over the maximum allowable coverage if

16 you do these things.  So one of those things is

17 allowing pervious sort of pathways, and we would

18 count these pervious pavers as sort of a pathway.

19               MR. BERNER:  I understand.  All

20 right.  So that's a fair comment.  Looking at the

21 landscaping plan, though, I do not see where

22 these pervious pavers were to be located.

23               MR. TAYLOR:  That -- on looking on

24 this image, it would be sort of planned north,

25 light blue-shaded area.  And I'll let the
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 1 applicant speak to that.  I'm not sure that -- I

 2 believe that's where the -- that reference is as

 3 well as the entry -- the plans -- the entry part

 4 of this -- the front stairway.  Those are all

 5 pervious materials there.

 6               MR. BERNER:  Got it.  Okay.  And I

 7 also have one other further comment.  Going back

 8 to -- there was a different landscaping plan that

 9 showed the -- an offset of 12 feet of the front

10 elevation -- or the front facade, I should say,

11 of this property to the neighboring property.

12 Yes, that's the one.  At the bottom, you see a

13 12-foot offset.  Do you see where I'm referring

14 to?  Right there.  Yes.

15               MR. TAYLOR:  This?

16               MR. BERNER:  Yes, sir.  I'm just

17 kind of curious why there is that offset because

18 as that offset is generating more driveway

19 surface area which then increases the lot

20 coverage calculation.  If the -- if there was not

21 an offset, I don't know what the math would be,

22 but the driveway overage would be much less and

23 maybe closer to the -- to the allowable value.

24 Do you --

25               MR. TAYLOR:  That would be a
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 1 question I would leave to the applicants to -- to

 2 address.

 3               MR. BERNER:  Okay.  Okay.

 4               MR. CASSIDY:  Any other questions

 5 for John before I call on the applicant?

 6               MS. KULICK:  Yes, Frank.  This is

 7 Wendy.  I've got one technical question first,

 8 and that is in -- in section I, we -- it says

 9 that the applicant's letter of intent stated, and

10 this was in quotes, that the City is working on

11 an amendment.  Given that it's the Town -- we're

12 a town and not a city, from a legal standpoint,

13 does that have any effect on the application?

14               MR. TAYLOR:  I would say no.  I

15 mean, I -- I believe the applicant -- I don't

16 want to speak for the applicant, but I think that

17 was just sort of an interpretation of municipal

18 government, but I hear that often that people

19 refer to the town as a city.  But I don't want to

20 speak for the applicant, and they can make that

21 clarification.

22               MS. KULICK:  Okay.  I just want to

23 make sure from a legal standpoint that doesn't

24 impact the application.  The other thing I'm just

25 not 100 percent clear on is how increasing the
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 1 lot coverage would allow different views.

 2               MR. TAYLOR:  So when -- could you

 3 rephrase your question?

 4               MS. KULICK:  Well, in other words,

 5 if the -- if moving the location would increase

 6 the views or allow different views, I could

 7 understand that.  But I don't understand how just

 8 increasing the amount of lot coverage would allow

 9 for this.

10               MR. TAYLOR:  I think that may be

11 another question for the applicant.

12               MS. KULICK:  Okay.

13               MR. TAYLOR:  But from -- from a --

14 from a -- just a macro level, the shifting of the

15 home would adjust the lot coverage based on

16 today's application as we've seen, the previous

17 application where the driveway was a little

18 larger being on the length of the driveway as the

19 home was shifted away from the ocean.  So I think

20 that's where you're going, but I would leave that

21 to the applicants to kind of maybe further

22 clarify.

23               MS. KULICK:  Okay.  Thanks.

24               MR. CASSIDY:  Other questions for

25 John?
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 1               MR. FARABEE:  I have a question.

 2               MR. CASSIDY:  Yes, Ben.

 3               MR. FARABEE:  John, has your

 4 determination of pervious versus impervious of

 5 the driveway changed since we reviewed this the

 6 first time?

 7               MR. TAYLOR:  It has not.

 8               MR. FARABEE:  It has not?

 9               MR. TAYLOR:  Yeah.  So the --

10 everything that -- everything essentially is the

11 same from the previous case as far as that

12 position.  The only additional documents that

13 were provided by the applicant that reassured --

14 I think sort of a few Board members may have had

15 questions regarding the specs and numbers

16 regarding runoff pre and post improvement.

17          And so staff's position is looking at

18 lot coverage from the interpretation of whether

19 it's pervious or -- or impervious, and so the

20 definition of pervious in the staff's position

21 has not affected why we -- why we are here for

22 the need of the variance.

23               MR. FARABEE:  Okay.

24               MR. CASSIDY:  Any other questions?

25 Okay.  I'd ask the applicant to make their
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 1 presentation, please.

 2               MR. HUEY:  Good morning, Board

 3 members.  My name is Bill Huey.  I'm an

 4 architect.  I'm representing my clients, the

 5 Kleines.  We did have the privilege to present to

 6 you before this application.  We have made

 7 modifications to this application.  I don't know

 8 if you would like for us to start over or

 9 basically address the modifications that we made

10 prior to our presentation.

11          The main thing I want to -- did want to

12 point out is I believe we have a couple new

13 members on our meeting today.  It's concerning a

14 couple of major points that we left with last

15 time, one of those being our immediate neighbor,

16 Mr. Barkley, was on the meeting Zoom call before.

17 He did voice some concerns about the positioning

18 of the house.  This goes to the question of the

19 12-foot.

20          We ended up working with Mr. Barkley.

21 Our client, Mr. Kleine, and Mr. Barkley had

22 several conversations together.  I believe we

23 have come to a solution that was amenable to the

24 Barkleys, and I believe he has written a letter

25 in support of what we're proposing at this time.
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 1 That was a major point last time, that we needed

 2 to work with Mr. Barkley to have an amenable

 3 solution with him, which we have done.

 4          The other thing I did want to point out,

 5 the -- and just to make a point, Mr. Berner, I

 6 appreciate your points about the engineering and

 7 the driveway and driveway systems, and you are

 8 correct that the pervious concrete and other

 9 materials, I believe that's our interpretation of

10 the ordinance the reason why, even with pervious

11 materials such as pervious concrete, are

12 interpreted as the middle 10 feet of that as

13 being impervious is because of their nature to

14 clog as you described.  That's why we're not

15 really proposing a pervious concrete sytem.

16 We're actually proposing an internally draining

17 concrete driveway system, which basically all

18 water that hits the driveway is captured and

19 diverted internally into a drain and then into an

20 adjacent well system and infiltration, which the

21 ordinance also allows percolation and

22 infiltration.

23          And one of the requirements of our last

24 review was that the Board wanted to see some

25 engineering data to that effect.  At the time of
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 1 our last meeting, we're actually in line to get

 2 with that engineer as the world has kind of

 3 gotten pretty busy lately.  We have now followed

 4 up with that engineering data that the Board was

 5 looking for, and that is also included in our

 6 current submittal packet.

 7          So what we -- we sort of left the

 8 meeting last time understanding was that there

 9 was more data that we needed to compile and also

10 then discussions with our neighbor about our

11 positioning situation, which we've done both of

12 those in good effort and good faith and I believe

13 in good -- excuse me, I believe we addressed

14 those points, and I believe the documentation is

15 in submittal to the support of that.

16          Really, the difference is where we are

17 today than where we were before, and while we're

18 asking for less now is because of our

19 repositioning and our discussions with

20 Mr. Barkley, again, to a solution that he found

21 to be amenable to -- to his interest as well.

22               MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, Mr. Huey.

23 Questions for Mr. Huey?

24               MR. ROSENFELD:  Yes, I have one.

25 If these -- I'm not an architect, so I'm asking
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 1 this off the cuff.  From the drawing that's up

 2 now, if the size of the driveway is contributing

 3 so much to the percentage of lot usage, could you

 4 not redesign it so that you enter the garage

 5 instead of having to come up and turn 90 degrees

 6 to the right creating that huge apron, suppose

 7 you just turn the garage 90 degrees, and you

 8 could pull straight in and that would eliminate

 9 the apron and reduce the amount of lot coverage?

10               MR. HUEY:  I do believe that is a

11 possibility.  There were a couple of reasons that

12 we tried to do that.  That -- that is seen as

13 less aesthetically pleasing from a neighborhood

14 context.  I know sometimes the ARB -- I know

15 we're not involved with the ARB in this process,

16 but we've gone through several projects where the

17 ARB obviously is involved and --

18               MR. ROSENFELD:  Well, the ARB

19 doesn't effect this particular --

20               MR. HUEY:  Just the -- the -- the

21 statement I was going to make has to do with the

22 aesthetics that the ARB -- and, again, I know

23 this is not an ARB jurisdiction.  But at times,

24 we are -- we are not really allowed to have

25 front-facing garage doors because the ARB in
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 1 certain neighborhoods and instances has deemed

 2 that to be a visual detriment to the

 3 neighborhood.  So --

 4               MR. ROSENFELD:  Again, this isn't

 5 under the purview of the ARB.

 6               MR. HUEY:  Correct, sir.  We were

 7 just trying to create a solution that we believed

 8 -- that we believed would be more visually

 9 appealing to the neighborhood in context.

10               MR. ROSENFELD:  It's a big decision

11 of an aesthetics versus compliance with existing

12 rules.

13               MR. HUEY:  Not 100 percent so, but

14 it is a part of the solution that we're trying to

15 make sure that obviously our neighbors are also

16 taken into consideration as to what they're going

17 to be seeing and the activity they're going to be

18 seeing as part of the --

19               MR. ROSENFELD:  Considering the

20 building of the house design, I don't -- I think

21 you've -- I think you've got to put up aluminum

22 siding doors.

23               MR. BERNER:  I have a follow-up

24 related question.  The way the driveway is

25 oriented now, the apron on the street on Eugenia
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 1 is pretty much in the center of the lot.  If you

 2 slid the apron on Eugenia such that it's a

 3 straight driveway, you would eliminate I'm going

 4 to use the word hypotenuse of the driveway.  You

 5 would get some savings over there in lot

 6 coverage.  I don't know how much it would be, but

 7 it certainly would be savings that -- that you

 8 could use to lower the overrun.

 9               MR. HUEY:  Yes, sir, Mr. Berner.

10 There also happens to be a cluster of oak trees

11 at the front corner of the lot, and I believe

12 that's why the apron is located where it is

13 because they're hard to read on this plan that

14 Mr. Taylor has up.  But I don't know if you have

15 the ability, John, to zoom in, but there is a

16 large cluster of oak trees at that front

17 cornering, the front lot property line area.

18               MR. BERNER:  All right.  So what if

19 you then flipped the house such that the driveway

20 would be closer to, I guess, the existing

21 property?  I understand -- I walked the property

22 the other day.  I understand it's steeper on that

23 side, but I'm trying to think of ways to overcome

24 the lot coverage issue.

25               MR. HUEY:  Yes.  I see your point
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 1 of that berm is an option as well --

 2               MR. BERNER:  Yes.

 3               MR. HUEY:  -- that we're trying to

 4 work with.  So that -- that is the issue to do

 5 that side.  Correct.

 6               MR. BERNER:  And can you explain

 7 the 12-foot offset that I discussed?  Because my

 8 impression just from walking the site is the --

 9 the offset, I guess, would provide you the visual

10 ability to look to the west, but the offset has

11 no impact from what I can understand in looking

12 straight out to the ocean.  It's only the view

13 over your neighbor's elevated pool to the west, I

14 guess, is the only thing that the 12-foot offset

15 is doing; is that correct?

16               MR. HUEY:  Yes, sir, Mr. Berner.

17 And that was actually the positioning that our

18 neighbor, Mr. Barkley, had suggested would be

19 viable from his standpoint as well.  He's pleased

20 with this new quarter of the house is positioned

21 in that -- at that point.  So we positioned it

22 for his -- his request, and that's why the

23 12 feet.  That number came from a discussion with

24 Mr. Barkley, the neighbor.

25               MR. BERNER:  Yeah, I understand.
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 1 But I think my point is that the 12-foot offset

 2 is just giving you the ability to look at the

 3 west, not -- not straight onto the ocean itself.

 4               MR. HUEY:  Yes.  It's the ability

 5 to have a form of a panorama and not compromise

 6 Mr. Barkley past his point of comfort as well.

 7               MS. KULICK:  Mr. Huey?

 8               MR. HUEY:  Yes.

 9               MS. KULICK:  Perhaps you can answer

10 the question that I raised earlier, and that is,

11 how will increasing the lot coverage allow for

12 different views?  I could understand if siting

13 the house in a different place would increase

14 coverage, but I don't understand how increasing

15 the lot coverage could allow for different views.

16               MR. HUEY:  Thank you.  We're really

17 into, I guess, a couple of points here that have

18 to do with the way the ordinance is structured

19 because our total lot coverage that really

20 remains compliant with the ordinance, we're under

21 the allowable 39.6 percent.  What's pushing us

22 over is the sort of pervious/impervious

23 definition and then the other caveat of the

24 ordinance that even a pervious driveway is still

25 considered to be impervious.
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 1          However, by what we've done by

 2 engineering this driveway in a system not seen

 3 before, it is now all pervious.  There's just no

 4 facility or device in the ordinance for us to

 5 make that determination right now, so it's not --

 6               MS. KULICK:  And I appreciate what

 7 you're saying, but I don't understand how it

 8 answers my question.  And I'm not trying to be

 9 difficult here, I'm just trying to understand.

10               MR. HUEY:  I guess what I'm -- I'm

11 -- I'm saying is there really sort of -- and this

12 -- and Mr. Taylor, if you maybe can clarify this

13 because, as we read through this, we have to make

14 our interpretations of how the ordinance is

15 structured.  But there is a total lot coverage

16 allowance that is available, and we meet and

17 conform with that.  The issue that we have has to

18 do with this pervious/impervious balance, and

19 that's where we're asking for relief so...

20               MR. KLEINE:  If I could -- if I

21 could speak.  I'm the property owner, Mark

22 Kleine, and I appreciate your consideration.  I

23 think maybe to answer your question, obviously

24 our goal is to try to get the home as close to

25 the ocean as possible.  By shortening or
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 1 lengthening the driveway, that basically is what

 2 -- what is allowing us either to get closer or to

 3 have to move away from the ocean.

 4          So originally we tried to put the home

 5 as far -- as close to the ocean as possible.

 6 That did not allow us to meet the lot coverage.

 7 It also impeded on Mr. Barkley's view.  So what

 8 we tried to do was to get the home in this

 9 application as close to the ocean as possible and

10 meet Mr. Barkley's need as well as -- putting in

11 this driveway system then took out the --

12 essentially the driveway being an issue.  Does

13 that answer your question?

14               MS. KULICK:  Not really, but I

15 appreciate it.

16               MR. KLEINE:  Well, maybe ask your

17 question again, then, because I guess --

18               MS. KULICK:  I could understand if

19 siting the house in a different location on the

20 lot increase -- allowed for increased views.  I

21 don't understand how increasing the lot coverage

22 does that.

23               MS. VIETH:  Wendy, maybe I can try

24 to take a crack at answering your question.  We

25 are complying with the total coverage, the
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 1 39.6 percent.  But due to the interpretation of

 2 the driveway being impervious, we're asking for

 3 more coverage for the impervious area.  So in

 4 this circumstance, it's allowing the driveway to

 5 be longer and closer to the ocean.

 6          An alternative circumstance would be

 7 moving the house closer to the street and

 8 therefore putting that coverage area to the pool

 9 deck, which would be pervious and also comply

10 with the ordinance.

11               MR. HUEY:  Yeah, I think that's the

12 point, you're right, that we're not really asking

13 for relief from -- from the total lot coverage.

14 We -- we're -- we comply.  We're asking for

15 relief from the pervious/impervious -- or I call

16 it the impervious calculation because the

17 ordinance, as currently written, has no device to

18 consider the type of engineered driveway that we

19 are proposing.

20               MR. CASSIDY:  Other questions for

21 the applicants?

22               MR. ROSENFELD:  Is there any data

23 as to the longevity of the pervious -- the degree

24 of perviousness?  Is that a form --

25               MR. HUEY:  Yes, sir.  We submitted
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 1 an engineering data.

 2               MR. ROSENFELD:  (Inaudible)

 3 perviousness over a period of time?

 4               MR. HUEY:  Yes, we submitted an

 5 engineering data to Mr. Taylor in our packet.

 6               MR. ROSENFELD:  In other words, it

 7 will -- it will continue the same degree of

 8 perviousness, or does it degrade over time as

 9 people drive over it?  Does it compact, as Russ

10 mentioned, with sand and everything blowing into

11 it?

12               MR. HUEY:  No.  No, sir.  It's an

13 internally-drained driveway.  It's not a pervious

14 driveway.

15               MR. ROSENFELD:  As long as the

16 draining system is kept clean?

17               MR. BERNER:  Well, yeah.  Larry, so

18 what they're doing -- instead of having -- down

19 the driveway, they're -- they have catch basins

20 at, I don't know, 15-, 20-foot intervals that are

21 draining to underground perforated pipe going to

22 a dry well.

23               MR. ROSENFELD:  Right.

24               MR. BERNER:  The driveways, instead

25 of being draining off -- being beveled to drain
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 1 off the driveway, the driveways are going to be

 2 sloped that it captures water down the center and

 3 drains into the catch basins.  So they're saying

 4 that effectively is going to make it pervious is

 5 what they're trying to present.

 6               (Inaudible.  Overlapping dialogue.)

 7               MR. BERNER:  -- bringing up, the

 8 system would have to be cleaned at some point

 9 because it will clog.

10               MR. ROSENFELD:  Yeah.

11               MR. BERNER:  It's not the pervious

12 concrete.  It's the catch basin system that's

13 going to a dry well.

14               MR. ROSENFELD:  Okay.  Thank you.

15               MR. BERNER:  But it will have to be

16 cleaned.  You're exactly right.  At some point,

17 it's going to clog, even the catch basin system.

18               MR. HUEY:  Yes, sir.  And where we

19 -- we are architects, not engineers.  So

20 obviously we've been trying to sophisticate a

21 system like this, but this is accepted in other

22 municipalities and is how we became aware of it,

23 and we've used it in other local municipalities,

24 and then that pulls no weight to you.  You're

25 your own entity.  But that's where it came about,
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 1 and that's why we presented it.  And at the last

 2 meeting, we were asked for the engineering data,

 3 and we were able to provide that in the

 4 submittal.

 5               MR. CASSIDY:  Other questions?  All

 6 right.  Let me ask if they're -- I'm sorry, Ben.

 7 Did you have a question?

 8               MR. FARABEE:  Not yet.

 9               MR. CASSIDY:  Let me ask if there

10 are others who wish to speak at this time?

11               MR. TAYLOR:  I do have Ms. Crafton,

12 and I don't know if they wanted to share comment.

13 I know they've joined us as well.

14               MS. CRAFTON:  No.

15               MR. CASSIDY:  Anyone else?  Okay.

16 Not seeing anyone, I'd entertain any motions that

17 anyone would care to present.  I'm not hearing a

18 motion, so by that -- by that lack of action, the

19 request for a variance is not approved.

20               MR. TAYLOR:  Well, you have to have

21 some type of motion made either in favor or in

22 opposition.

23               MR. FARABEE:  Okay.  I'll make the

24 motion.

25               MR. TAYLOR:  Joe -- Joe, why don't
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 1 you step in there.

 2               MR. FARABEE:  This is Ben Farabee.

 3 I'm making a motion that the request for the

 4 variance not be approved.

 5               MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, Ben.  Is

 6 there a second?

 7               MR. ROSENFELD:  Second.

 8               MR. HANAN:  I'll second it.

 9               MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you.  Any

10 further discussion?

11               MR. KLEINE:  Yeah, it's unfortunate

12 that it seems as though people's minds were made

13 up before we even had an opportunity to present

14 our case, but you're the Board, so that's your

15 choice.

16               MR. ROSENFELD:  May I respond?

17               MR. TAYLOR:  Well, the only person

18 that should be commenting now is the Board, so if

19 we can keep it that way, that helps me out

20 tremendously.

21               MR. CASSIDY:  Go ahead, Larry, if

22 you have a comment.

23               MR. ROSENFELD:  My comment is that,

24 as I'm new to the Board, I have no preconceived

25 notions at all, number one.  And number two, I
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 1 don't think we ever got an answer to Wendy's

 2 question, and that concerns me.

 3               MR. FARABEE:  I'll make a comment.

 4               MR. ROSENFELD:  (Inaudible).  You

 5 know, if you can't, why does -- you know, as

 6 Wendy asked the question, why does that create a

 7 problem?  I mean, you can relocate the house and

 8 not change the foot area, and that can solve it.

 9 I mean, but, you know, again, I'm not an

10 architect, and I'm not the homeowner, so I don't

11 know, but that's my concern.  So I -- I agree

12 that this should be denied.

13               MR. CASSIDY:  I guess what I would

14 say is that as the applicant mentioned, the

15 further you move -- you can move the house

16 further away from the ocean and get into

17 compliance, and the -- this is a -- it's a --

18 it's a -- a -- a fight between -- between the

19 view and complying with the regulations.  Ben, go

20 ahead.

21               MR. FARABEE:  I have a statement --

22 I have a statement, not a question, but a couple

23 things here bother me.  First of all, we're not

24 here to make engineering decisions.  I had a

25 feeling all along that we're -- we were -- we
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 1 were asked to take some faith in engineering that

 2 has gone forward in this.

 3          I'd also like to say I think the Town

 4 and the applicant have greatly complicated this

 5 by not taking -- by their definitions or lack of

 6 definitions of pervious, impervious, included,

 7 excluded, and all this jargon that goes on that

 8 doesn't help us in making decisions, and I think

 9 it only complicates things when one person says

10 it's pervious and then the next person says it's

11 impervious and talking about the same thing and

12 yet when you ask them, there's no conflict.  So

13 that's my statement.

14               MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you.

15               MR. HUEY:  Sorry.  I know --

16 Mr. Chairman, I know I'm only an applicant, but

17 may I just speak to Mr. Farabee's comment, which

18 I think was a very good comment?  When we brought

19 this --

20               MR. CASSIDY:  Go ahead.

21               MR. HUEY:  When we brought this

22 potential drainage scenario to John Taylor, John

23 was very helpful with us, but he said he does not

24 have the ability to make that determination of

25 viability.  He said that really had to go to your
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 1 Board.  So Mr. Farabee, I appreciate your

 2 comment.  It's kind of like you're caught in a

 3 catch-22 as well.  So I appreciate your

 4 statement.  Thank you.

 5               MR. CASSIDY:  I'd just make a

 6 similar comment.  This -- this application

 7 bothered me the last time it came before us, and

 8 it -- it still bothers me.  If the system

 9 operated as -- as alleged, I think we probably

10 want to consider it in a different fashion, but

11 we don't have that option at the moment.

12          Other comments from the Board?  I'm

13 going to take a roll call vote on this one.

14 Again, the motion is to -- to reject the

15 application.  So a yes vote will be to reject; a

16 no vote will be not in favor of rejecting.

17          Ben?

18               MR. FARABEE:  Yes.

19               MR. CASSIDY:  Jay?  Jay?  Are you

20 still here, Jay?  Oh, there you are.  Can you

21 take your mute off?  I'm not hearing you, Jay.

22 Let me come back to Jay.  Jay, there's something

23 wrong.  We're not -- we're not hearing you.

24          Morris?

25               MR. HANAN:  Yes.



Kiawah Island BZA Meeting 82

Clark & Associates, Inc.

 1               MR. CASSIDY:  Wendy?

 2               MS. KULICK:  Yes.

 3               MR. CASSIDY:  Russ?

 4               MR. BERNER:  Yes.

 5               MR. CASSIDY:  Larry?

 6               MR. ROSENFELD:  Yes.

 7               MR. CASSIDY:  Frank, yes.

 8          Jay?  Would you turn your camera on,

 9 Jay?  All right.  We've got technical

10 difficulties with Jay, so we're not going to

11 record his vote.  But for the rest of the Zoning

12 Board, that is -- that is -- I'm sorry, go ahead,

13 Jay.

14          Well, the rest of the Zoning Board that

15 has voted, it's unanimous, and we reject the

16 application.  And I think the basis for that is

17 that the -- the primary lot coverage as defined

18 in our current requirements is -- is violated and

19 running out of opportunities to -- to bring the

20 development into -- into -- into compliance.  So

21 I thank everybody.

22          John, do we have any further business

23 today?

24               MR. TAYLOR:  No additional business

25 today.  Just to comment, thank you all for
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 1 joining us today.  You'll -- I've been sending

 2 out notices in regards to more continuing ed

 3 opportunities, but no additional business today.

 4 We will have a meeting next month, and that will

 5 be at our regular scheduled time at 3:00 p.m.  So

 6 this was just noted sort of anomaly here to shift

 7 -- shift our time period to 10:00 a.m., but we

 8 will meet next month at 3:00.

 9               MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  Thanks, John.

10 If there are no further issues, I'd entertain a

11 motion to adjourn.

12               MR. FARABEE:  So moved.

13               MR. CASSIDY:  Moved.

14               MR. ROSENFELD:  Second.

15               MR. CASSIDY:  Second?  All those in

16 favor, please say aye.

17               (All respond aye.)

18               MR. CASSIDY:  Opposed?  All right.

19 Thank you, everyone.

20               MR. ROSENFELD:  Thank you.

21              (End of audio recording.)
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 2

 3               I, Paula Wondra, a Notary Public at
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administrator   (3)
adversely   (3)
aerial   (1)
aesthetically   (1)
aesthetics   (2)
affect   (8)
affirm   (3)
affixed   (1)
agent   (1)
aggregate   (1)
agree   (4)
agreed   (2)
agreements   (1)
Ah   (1)
ahead   (6)
Alice   (5)
aligning   (1)
alleged   (1)
allow   (19)
allowable   (14)
allowance   (6)
allowed   (5)
allowing   (4)
allows   (3)
alluded   (1)
alternative   (1)
aluminum   (1)
amenable   (3)
amend   (1)

amendment   (2)
amendments   (1)
amount   (2)
Andell   (1)
Andrew   (3)
announce   (1)
announcement   (1)
anomaly   (1)
answer   (6)
answered   (1)
answering   (1)
answers   (1)
anybody   (2)
anyway   (1)
appeal   (5)
appealing   (1)
APPEALS   (8)
appearance   (1)
appears   (2)
applicant   (40)
applicants   (6)
applicant's   (21)
application   (24)
applied   (2)
apply   (5)
appreciate   (8)
approach   (1)
appropriate   (1)
approvable   (1)
approval   (4)
approve   (13)
approved   (7)
approving   (1)
approximate   (1)
approximately   (14)
April   (1)
apron   (5)
ARB   (10)
architect   (6)
architects   (1)
Architectural   (11)
area   (19)
areas   (2)
arrangement   (1)
asked   (3)
asking   (10)
asks   (1)
aspect   (1)
asphalt   (1)

Kiawah Island BZA Meeting 101

Clark & Associates, Inc.



assembled   (1)
assist   (2)
assistance   (1)
ASSOCIATES   (2)
assume   (2)
assumed   (1)
assumptions   (1)
attached   (1)
attaching   (1)
attempt   (1)
attention   (1)
attorney   (4)
audio   (3)
authority   (1)
authorization   (3)
authorized   (3)
available   (3)
Avenue   (1)
aware   (1)
Awesome   (1)
aye   (6)

< B >
back   (6)
backs   (1)
backup   (1)
balance   (1)
barely   (1)
Barkley   (9)
Barkleys   (2)
Barkley's   (2)
barrier   (1)
based   (14)
basement   (1)
basically   (3)
basin   (6)
basins   (2)
basis   (1)
beach   (2)
bearing   (1)
beautification   (1)
beauty   (1)
Beginning   (2)
beginnings   (1)
believe   (23)
believed   (2)
believes   (1)
Ben   (11)
berm   (1)

Berner   (28)
best   (1)
beveled   (1)
beyond   (6)
BG   (1)
big   (2)
Bill   (4)
bit   (5)
blowing   (1)
Blue   (1)
blue-shaded   (1)
Bluff   (1)
BOARD   (48)
Board's   (1)
boardwalks   (1)
body   (2)
Bohicket   (1)
bond   (1)
bother   (1)
bothered   (1)
bothers   (1)
bottom   (1)
boundaries   (2)
boundary   (1)
bounds   (1)
Box   (1)
break   (2)
bring   (2)
bringing   (1)
brought   (4)
building   (6)
buildings   (2)
built   (2)
bunch   (1)
business   (4)
busy   (1)
BZA   (16)
BZA20-000014   (2)
BZA21-000001   (2)
BZA21-000002   (2)

< C >
calculate   (1)
calculated   (2)
calculation   (5)
calculations   (1)
call   (9)
called   (1)
camera   (1)

cameras   (2)
Cane   (1)
captured   (1)
captures   (1)
capturing   (1)
care   (5)
carefully   (1)
carries   (2)
case   (35)
cases   (3)
Cassidy   (91)
catch   (9)
catch-22   (1)
catchment   (1)
caught   (1)
cause   (1)
caveat   (1)
cease   (1)
center   (2)
certain   (3)
certainly   (1)
CERTIFICATE   (1)
certify   (2)
chairman   (3)
challenge   (1)
challenges   (1)
change   (5)
changed   (1)
channel   (1)
character   (3)
Charleston   (2)
chime   (1)
choice   (1)
Christian   (3)
circuit   (2)
circumstance   (2)
City   (4)
clarification   (1)
clarified   (1)
clarify   (4)
clarifying   (1)
CLARK   (1)
clean   (2)
cleaned   (2)
cleaning   (1)
clear   (4)
cleared   (1)
clearing   (1)
clerk   (1)

client   (1)
clients   (4)
client's   (1)
clog   (4)
clogged   (1)
close   (5)
closer   (7)
cluster   (4)
Code   (2)
color   (1)
come   (8)
comes   (2)
comfort   (1)
comment   (11)
commenting   (1)
comments   (10)
commission   (3)
committee   (1)
compact   (1)
compaction   (3)
Company   (1)
compared   (1)
compile   (1)
complete   (2)
completely   (3)
completion   (1)
compliance   (5)
compliant   (2)
complicated   (1)
complicates   (1)
comply   (2)
complying   (2)
comprehensive   (12)
compromise   (1)
conceptual   (2)
concern   (3)
concerning   (2)
concerns   (2)
concludes   (2)
concrete   (8)
condition   (1)
conditions   (14)
conduct   (1)
conducted   (3)
configuration   (2)
confirmed   (1)
conflict   (7)
conflicting   (1)
conform   (1)
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conforming   (1)
confused   (1)
consider   (6)
consideration   (4)
considered   (5)
considering   (4)
consist   (1)
constructed   (2)
construction   (3)
contact   (1)
contain   (1)
contained   (2)
containing   (1)
contempt   (1)
context   (2)
continue   (3)
continuing   (1)
continuous   (1)
contractor   (1)
contrary   (4)
contributing   (1)
conversations   (2)
cooled   (1)
corner   (16)
cornering   (1)
Correct   (15)
correctly   (1)
corresponds   (1)
counsel   (1)
count   (2)
County   (1)
couple   (6)
Courier   (1)
course   (7)
court   (3)
courtyards   (1)
coverage   (53)
covered   (2)
crack   (1)
Crafton   (3)
crazy   (1)
create   (2)
created   (1)
creating   (2)
criteria   (36)
criterias   (1)
critical   (1)
cuff   (1)
cul-de-sac   (7)

curious   (2)
current   (7)
currently   (3)
cursor   (1)

< D >
Dane   (1)
danger   (1)
data   (8)
DATE   (1)
day   (2)
days   (2)
debris   (1)
decision   (7)
decisions   (4)
deck   (16)
decks   (2)
declaration   (1)
decrease   (1)
deemed   (1)
defer   (1)
define   (3)
defined   (7)
defines   (3)
definitely   (1)
definition   (5)
definitions   (3)
DeGonzague   (1)
degrade   (1)
degree   (2)
degrees   (2)
denied   (2)
deny   (3)
deprives   (1)
described   (1)
design   (3)
designated   (1)
designed   (1)
determination   (3)
determined   (3)
detriment   (5)
developed   (1)
developing   (1)
development   (2)
device   (2)
diagram   (2)
diagrams   (2)
dialogue   (1)
difference   (1)

different   (9)
difficult   (2)
difficulties   (1)
direct   (1)
directed   (1)
directly   (1)
director   (5)
disagree   (1)
disapproved   (1)
discussed   (2)
discussion   (5)
discussions   (2)
distance   (4)
district   (11)
diverted   (1)
documentation   (1)
documents   (2)
dog   (1)
doing   (3)
doors   (2)
dots   (1)
drain   (2)
drainage   (1)
draining   (6)
drains   (1)
drawing   (2)
drive   (2)
driveway   (38)
driveways   (6)
driving   (2)
dry   (2)
due   (7)

< E >
earlier   (3)
east   (4)
ed   (1)
edge   (3)
effect   (4)
effectively   (1)
effort   (1)
efforts   (1)
either   (7)
elevated   (4)
elevation   (3)
eliminate   (2)
e-mail   (2)
empowered   (1)
Enabling   (1)

encountered   (1)
encourage   (1)
encroach   (1)
encroaching   (1)
encroachment   (6)
ended   (1)
engaged   (1)
engineer   (2)
engineered   (5)
engineering   (10)
engineers   (1)
ensure   (2)
enter   (1)
entered   (1)
entertain   (7)
entertained   (1)
entertaining   (1)
entire   (1)
entities   (1)
entity   (1)
entrances   (1)
entry   (3)
environment   (2)
equated   (1)
equates   (1)
Essentially   (7)
establishment   (6)
etcetera   (2)
Eugenia   (9)
event   (1)
everybody   (2)
evidence   (4)
exactly   (2)
exceed   (2)
exception   (2)
exceptional   (5)
exceptionally   (1)
exceptions   (4)
excluded   (3)
exclusions   (3)
excuse   (4)
exhibit   (1)
exhibits   (3)
exist   (1)
existing   (19)
explain   (1)
explanation   (2)
extend   (4)
extended   (1)
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extends   (1)
extension   (2)
extensive   (2)
extra   (2)
extraordinary   (5)

< F >
facade   (1)
faces   (1)
facility   (1)
facing   (1)
fact   (2)
factfinding   (2)
Failure   (1)
fair   (1)
fairly   (1)
faith   (2)
fall   (4)
falling   (1)
falls   (2)
false   (1)
familiar   (2)
far   (5)
Farabee   (19)
Farabee's   (1)
fashion   (1)
fast   (1)
favor   (6)
February   (2)
feel   (2)
feeling   (2)
feet   (32)
felt   (1)
Fifteen   (1)
fight   (1)
file   (1)
filed   (1)
filled   (1)
final   (4)
finally   (2)
find   (1)
findings   (3)
Fine   (3)
first   (15)
flag   (3)
flipped   (1)
flood   (1)
floor   (1)
flow   (1)

foliage   (2)
folks   (5)
followed   (1)
following   (2)
follows   (1)
follow-up   (1)
foot   (3)
footage   (1)
footprint   (4)
foregoing   (1)
foresee   (1)
forgive   (1)
form   (2)
forward   (5)
found   (1)
Frank   (11)
free   (1)
Freedom   (3)
front   (13)
front-facing   (1)
fully   (1)
further   (11)
furthest   (1)
future   (1)

< G >
Galasso   (12)
garage   (4)
gathering   (1)
general   (1)
generally   (3)
generating   (1)
gentlemen   (1)
getting   (1)
Giovanna   (3)
Giovanna's   (1)
GIS   (1)
give   (9)
given   (4)
gives   (1)
giving   (1)
Glen   (5)
go   (16)
goal   (2)
God   (3)
goes   (3)
going   (22)
golf   (7)
Good   (8)

gotten   (2)
Government   (2)
grade   (3)
grand   (1)
grandson   (1)
grant   (7)
granted   (4)
granting   (10)
gravel   (1)
Great   (2)
greater   (3)
greatly   (1)
ground   (1)
guarantee   (1)
guess   (8)
guest   (1)
guidance   (1)
guys   (1)

< H >
habitat   (2)
hall   (1)
Hanan   (4)
hand   (3)
handled   (1)
hands   (3)
happens   (1)
happy   (1)
hard   (1)
hardship   (1)
harm   (1)
harmed   (1)
harmony   (4)
Haven   (1)
hear   (7)
heard   (2)
hearing   (9)
heated   (1)
heavily   (2)
heavy   (2)
height   (1)
help   (4)
helpful   (2)
helping   (1)
helps   (1)
hereunto   (1)
Hey   (1)
Hi   (2)
hide   (1)

high   (1)
highlight   (1)
hits   (1)
home   (15)
homeowner   (2)
home's   (1)
hopefully   (2)
hours   (1)
house   (23)
houses   (2)
How's   (1)
Huey   (28)
huge   (1)
hypotenuse   (1)

< I >
ideals   (1)
identify   (1)
image   (4)
images   (5)
immediate   (1)
impact   (6)
impacted   (2)
impeded   (1)
impedes   (1)
impervious   (16)
important   (1)
impossible   (1)
impression   (1)
improperly   (1)
improve   (1)
improved   (1)
improvement   (2)
improves   (1)
inaudible   (17)
include   (7)
included   (10)
includes   (2)
including   (5)
increase   (10)
increased   (1)
increases   (1)
increasing   (5)
individuals   (2)
infiltrate   (1)
infiltration   (4)
infinity   (1)
Information   (9)
informed   (2)
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inspection   (1)
instances   (1)
instructed   (1)
intensive   (1)
intent   (15)
interest   (7)
interested   (1)
Interesting   (1)
interfere   (4)
interject   (2)
internal   (2)
internally   (2)
internally-drained 
 (1)
interpret   (1)
interpretation   (7)
interpretations   (1)
interpreted   (2)
intervals   (1)
introduce   (1)
introduction   (1)
invested   (1)
involved   (2)
involving   (1)
irregular   (2)
Island   (12)
issue   (6)
issues   (2)
item   (1)
items   (2)
its   (5)

< J >
jargon   (1)
Jay   (12)
Joe   (21)
John   (35)
Johns   (1)
John's   (1)
join   (4)
joined   (7)
joining   (3)
Jr   (1)
Junior   (1)
jurisdiction   (4)
jurisdictions   (1)

< K >
Keely   (2)

keep   (5)
keeping   (2)
kept   (2)
Kiawah   (8)
Kiawah's   (1)
kind   (6)
Kleine   (8)
Kleines   (1)
know   (30)
knowing   (1)
knowledgeable   (1)
Kulick   (18)

< L >
lack   (2)
land   (5)
lands   (1)
landscape   (6)
landscaped   (1)
landscaping   (7)
Lanham   (24)
large   (7)
larger   (1)
Larry   (9)
Larry's   (1)
lately   (1)
Laughlin   (5)
layout   (1)
leading   (1)
leave   (2)
left   (6)
left-hand   (1)
legal   (2)
length   (1)
lengthening   (1)
letter   (19)
letters   (2)
level   (2)
Lewis   (2)
licensed   (1)
light   (1)
limit   (1)
limited   (2)
limits   (2)
line   (15)
lines   (1)
list   (1)
listening   (1)
little   (6)

live   (6)
Local   (2)
located   (10)
locates   (1)
LOCATION   (17)
locations   (1)
logical   (1)
long   (2)
longer   (2)
longevity   (1)
look   (5)
looking   (8)
looks   (1)
lot   (98)
lots   (1)
lot's   (1)
Lowcountry   (1)
lower   (3)

< M >
ma'am   (3)
macro   (1)
magnolia   (1)
mailed   (2)
main   (2)
maintain   (1)
maintained   (1)
maintaining   (1)
maintenance   (2)
major   (2)
majority   (1)
making   (3)
Malullo   (1)
management   (4)
managing   (1)
manual   (1)
map   (2)
March   (1)
Maria   (9)
Marina   (1)
Mark   (3)
material   (5)
materials   (16)
math   (1)
matriculate   (2)
matriculates   (1)
matter   (1)
mature   (4)
maximum   (11)

mean   (4)
meaning   (2)
measured   (1)
media   (1)
meet   (9)
MEETING   (18)
meetings   (2)
MEMBERS   (14)
mention   (1)
mentioned   (5)
met   (1)
metric   (2)
middle   (1)
mind   (1)
minds   (1)
mine   (1)
minimize   (1)
minimum   (4)
Minner   (6)
mispronounced   (1)
mitigation   (1)
modifications   (2)
modified   (1)
Moffitt   (1)
moment   (5)
momentarily   (2)
month   (2)
months   (1)
morning   (3)
Morris   (3)
motion   (12)
motions   (3)
move   (12)
moved   (2)
movement   (1)
moving   (2)
multiple   (2)
municipal   (1)
municipalities   (2)
mute   (3)

< N >
name   (3)
narrowed   (1)
narrower   (3)
natural   (2)
nature   (4)
near   (2)
necessarily   (2)
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need   (16)
needed   (2)
needs   (3)
negatively   (1)
neglected   (1)
neighbor   (4)
neighborhood   (13)
neighborhoods   (1)
neighboring   (5)
neighbors   (3)
neighbor's   (2)
never   (1)
new   (11)
news   (1)
Nicole   (2)
nonconforming   (2)
normal   (1)
north   (6)
northeast   (1)
northwest   (1)
Notary   (1)
note   (5)
noted   (2)
notes   (2)
notice   (4)
noticeable   (1)
notices   (1)
notification   (1)
noting   (1)
notions   (1)
number   (11)
numbers   (2)

< O >
oak   (6)
oaks   (7)
obtain   (2)
obviously   (4)
occurs   (1)
ocean   (10)
oceanfront   (4)
official   (4)
officially   (1)
offset   (10)
Oh   (8)
Okay   (35)
once   (2)
open   (3)
operated   (1)

opportunities   (2)
opportunity   (2)
Opposed   (3)
opposition   (3)
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                 1              (Beginning of audio recording.)

                 2                  MS. LAUGHLIN:  All right.  We're

                 3    now live.  Thank you, everyone.

                 4                  MR. CASSIDY:  Good morning,

                 5    everyone, and welcome to a rare morning meeting

                 6    of the Board of Zoning Appeals.  I'm Frank

                 7    Cassidy.  I'm the chairman of the Board.  Please

                 8    note that the Town of Kiawah Island until further

                 9    notice will conduct all committee and public

                10    meetings over videoconference as we are today.

                11    These meetings will be streamed and is being

                12    streamed to the Town's YouTube channel.  Members

                13    of the public wishing to submit comments

                14    regarding any of the presented BZA cases should

                15    e-mail their comments to Petra Reynolds, town

                16    clerk, at preynolds@kiawahisland.org.

                17             The Board members who will hear your

                18    case today -- cases today are Wendy Kulick,

                19    myself Frank Cassidy, Jay Lewis, Morris Hanan,

                20    Ben Farabee, and we are pleased to welcome our

                21    two new members of the BZA, Russ Berner and Larry

                22    Rosenfeld.  Welcome, gentlemen.

                23                  MR. BERNER:  Thank you.

                24                  MR. CASSIDY:  Staff -- staff

                25    members present are John Taylor, Junior, our
�
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                 1    planning director, and Joe Wilson, the attorney

                 2    for the BZA.

                 3                  MR. TAYLOR:  Hey, Frank.  Can I

                 4    pause you there --

                 5                  MR. CASSIDY:  Sure.

                 6                  MR. TAYLOR:  -- just to know, Joe

                 7    hasn't joined us just yet, so we can go through

                 8    some of the protocol before we get started.

                 9                  MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  Fine.  Our

                10    case rulings from this and any BZA meeting are

                11    available for public review and inspection during

                12    normal business hours at the town hall.  Since

                13    our meeting is being conducted virtually, please

                14    be reminded that in order to obtain a clean and

                15    clear record for persons listening live, it is

                16    important that all participants not speak over

                17    one another.  If you'd like to speak, please do

                18    so by raising your hand, and wait until you're

                19    acknowledged by the chairman.

                20             I would also -- I would like to ask any

                21    of the members of the public present today if you

                22    are familiar with the procedural workings of the

                23    BZA.  If everyone is familiar, I'll skip the

                24    comprehensive explanation of the BG -- BZA

                25    workings.  If anyone would like to hear that
�
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                 1    comprehensive explanation, raise your hand,

                 2    otherwise I'll just continue.  Seeing no one,

                 3    I'll -- I'll move forward.

                 4                  MR. TAYLOR:  Could -- could we

                 5    pause here, Mr. Cassidy --

                 6                  MR. CASSIDY:  Sure.

                 7                  MR. TAYLOR:  -- and just do a

                 8    second set of roll call?  We've had some

                 9    additional folks join us.  And just to ensure

                10    that the meeting goes a little bit smoothly, just

                11    reminding folks, if you are not on the Board,

                12    that we ask that you please pause or stop your

                13    video until your case has been called.  That way

                14    once we do call your case, that we can have you

                15    join via video.  We -- we have a number of

                16    persons who will be on today's call, and so we

                17    want to just keep a little bit sort of a clear

                18    understanding of who's presenting at what time.

                19    Thank you so much.

                20                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thanks, John.

                21    Because today's hearing is a public factfinding

                22    meeting, we are in compliance with the Freedom of

                23    Information Act and SC Code 6-29-70.  Because

                24    this is a quasi-judicial body, everything said in

                25    this meeting must be complete, true, and
�
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                 1    accurate.  All of the information provided to the

                 2    BZA is considered evidence, and this Board may

                 3    certify contempt of circuit court if false

                 4    statements are made either in writing or orally.

                 5    Because of this, each person who wishes to

                 6    address the Board will be sworn in.

                 7             Has Joe Wilson joined, John?

                 8                  MR. TAYLOR:  Not at the moment.  We

                 9    have a call out to see where he might be, so he's

                10    -- he has not joined us just yet.

                11                  MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  John, do you

                12    want to start in on presenting the first case, or

                13    should we wait on that?

                14                  MR. TAYLOR:  Let's pause just for a

                15    second.  If you may just review some of the BZA

                16    purview --

                17                  MR. CASSIDY:  Sure.

                18                  MR. TAYLOR:  -- that -- that would

                19    probably be most appropriate.

                20                  MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  The Board --

                21    the Board of Zoning Appeals has jurisdiction over

                22    three types of cases:  Appeals, variances, and

                23    special exceptions.  Appeals are heard regarding

                24    administrative actions or decisions by the zoning

                25    administrator or staff.  Variances may be granted
�
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                 1    when strict application of the zoning other than

                 2    -- of the zoning ordinance would cause an

                 3    unnecessary hardship.  This Board's actions must

                 4    be based on specific standards as contained in

                 5    the SC Local Government Planning Enabling Act of

                 6    1994 in the Town of Kiawah Island zoning

                 7    ordinance.  And then the third is -- item of

                 8    jurisdiction is special exceptions, which allow

                 9    the Board to permit uses of certain conditions as

                10    contained in the zoning ordinance are met.

                11             A simple majority vote of the quorum

                12    present is required to grant a variance or

                13    overturn the decision of the zoning administrator

                14    on an appeal or to grant a special exception.

                15             Because today's hearing is a public

                16    factfinding hearing, we are in compliance with --

                17    as I mentioned, with the Freedom of Information

                18    Act.  Fifteen days prior to this hearing, an

                19    announcement was printed in the posted Courier, a

                20    sign was posted on or near the designated

                21    property, and a notice was mailed to the

                22    applicant or representative and to residents

                23    within 300 feet of the application and to parties

                24    of interest.  Persons, organizations, and the

                25    news media that have requested declaration of our
�
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                 1    meeting have been informed.

                 2             The Freedom of Information Act does not

                 3    require a notification of anyone other than the

                 4    applicant and parties of interest.  Our purpose

                 5    today is for interested parties to be heard in

                 6    order to assist the Board in gathering evidence

                 7    to -- pertinent to each case.  If the members of

                 8    the BZA feel the need for further information to

                 9    clarify the case, the Board has the authority to

                10    subpoena witnesses -- subpoena witnesses.

                11             In addition to your testimony, our Board

                12    has been presented written information submitted

                13    to the staff by the applicant -- I believe

                14    you-all have seen that -- or their agent for each

                15    case.  This information is now considered to be

                16    evidence and is entered into the permanent record

                17    of this body.  It's assumed that this is

                18    complete, true, and accurate.

                19             Also, we have been presented data

                20    assembled by the staff for the purpose of

                21    clarifying the location and the affect on

                22    surrounding property.  Our Board is empowered to

                23    approve, approve of conditions, or deny your

                24    request.  We are also authorized to defer a case

                25    should there be a need to obtain additional
�
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                 1    information.

                 2             If an applicant's request is approved

                 3    for a special exception or a variance or an

                 4    appeal of a decision by the zoning administrator,

                 5    they must go to the Town of Kiawah Island to

                 6    apply for permits.  Variances and special

                 7    exceptions granted by the BZA are valid for 12

                 8    months after this meeting.

                 9             However, if the applicant's request is

                10    disapproved and they wish to appeal the decision

                11    of the Board concerning this case, appeals must

                12    be addressed to the circuit court.

                13             SC Code 6-29-20 states that the appeal

                14    must be filed by the applicant within 30 days

                15    after the decision of the Board is mailed to

                16    them.  Failure to file an appeal within the time

                17    limit deprives the Court of the jurisdiction to

                18    hear this matter.

                19             Okay, John.  Do we have Joe present yet?

                20    You're on mute, John.

                21                  MR. TAYLOR:  Joe has not joined us.

                22    We've sent out an e-mail and -- and prior call.

                23    I have not gotten a word just yet.  I think what

                24    we can do at this time is we can introduce the

                25    record.  But until we do have our town attorney,
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                 1    we won't be able to begin entertaining any of the

                 2    case.  So I just want to take a pause here until

                 3    we do get Joe on.  But if we can, I will share --

                 4    share the beginnings of case -- the first case so

                 5    that we begin the record.  And then once Joe does

                 6    join, we can entertain those members to speak on

                 7    the application.

                 8                  MR. CASSIDY:  That's fine.  So

                 9    John, the floor is yours.

                10                  MR. TAYLOR:  Okay.  I'm going to

                11    share my screen here in just a moment.  While I'm

                12    doing that, if the applicants -- all Board

                13    members, you can -- you can keep your -- your

                14    screen shared.  You don't have to stop your

                15    video.  But I will ask that the applicants for

                16    this case -- if Alice is on or Christian Werner,

                17    if you-all are on, you can share your video or

                18    start your video if you would like to.

                19                  MS. LANHAM:  I don't believe

                20    Mr. Werner is here, at least not yet.

                21                  MR. TAYLOR:  Okay.  That's fine.

                22    Are you able to see my slides there, everyone?

                23             ("Yes" was responded by multiple

                24    people.)

                25                  MR. TAYLOR:  Thank you.  So today's
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                 1    first case, which is BZA20-000014, I want to be

                 2    clear in knowing first that our town attorney

                 3    will be joining us shortly, momentarily

                 4    hopefully, and so everything that's noted we will

                 5    include into the record officially.

                 6             But today's case, BZA20-000014, this is

                 7    a variance request, and this is for the reduction

                 8    of the required 25-foot side setback.  The

                 9    subject property is 275 Summer Tanager, TMS

                10    number 207-04-00-023.  The applicant is being

                11    represented by Ms. Alice Lanham -- forgive me if

                12    I mispronounced that -- property owners,

                13    Christian Werner.  Subject property is

                14    approximately 14,000 square feet, and this is

                15    adjacent to the cul-de-sac of Summer -- Summer

                16    Tanager.

                17             The ordinance does define setback as a

                18    required minimum distance, and this is from a lot

                19    line or a street right-of-way or critical line.

                20    And the ordinance defines a side setback as any

                21    setback that's other than the rear or the front

                22    setback.  Here's an image of that subject

                23    property as stated that sits adjacent to the

                24    cul-de-sac and actually backs up to the Kiawah

                25    Island Parkway.
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                 1             The applicant's plan does propose a new

                 2    single-family structure on the site to include a

                 3    rear pool.  And additionally, the proposed

                 4    plans -- the front stairs that extends beyond the

                 5    5-foot allowance is the reason of today's

                 6    variance request.  The subject property is vacant

                 7    as shown in the images.  It's heavily filled with

                 8    mature trees and vegetation.  And this is shown

                 9    on the site plan to the northwest -- or the west

                10    end of the site is where the requested variance

                11    for the stairs is located.

                12             I'm going to review this staff --

                13    criteria or staff review based on the criterias

                14    that were outlined by staff.  A site visit was

                15    conducted on February 3rd of 2021.  And at the

                16    time, the following findings were brought to your

                17    attention via the case materials.

                18             In terms of criteria A, there may be

                19    extraordinary and exceptional conditions to this

                20    particular lot.  This is -- and due to the

                21    required setbacks as well as -- as well as the

                22    irregular shape of the lot.  It is a triangular

                23    shape, and the existing vegetation on the site --

                24    per the applicant's letter of intent, they also

                25    understand that the lot has -- presents a lot of
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                 1    challenges because it sits triangular shape and

                 2    the cluster of three oaks in the upper right-hand

                 3    corner which, per the limits, the useable barrier

                 4    [ph] of the lot.

                 5             The conditions -- criteria B, the

                 6    conditions may be unique to the subject property

                 7    and may not generally apply to other properties

                 8    in the vicinity.  The subject property is

                 9    irregular shape whereas properties within the

                10    vicinity are more rectangular in shape.  Existing

                11    structures in the vicinity may or may not have

                12    some of the lot setback requirements, and that's

                13    based on existing zoning standards.  The

                14    applicant also stated that the lot's vicinity are

                15    either large or are more rectangular in shape.

                16             Criteria C, the application of the

                17    ordinance to this particular property would

                18    prohibit their construction of the residence as

                19    the proposed stair does approach into the

                20    setback.  That's the 25-foot required side

                21    setback, and the applicant has shown within their

                22    materials a diagram that shows the lot -- the

                23    square footage of the lot that cannot be

                24    utilized, which they have presented to be over a

                25    quarter of the lot.
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                 1             And then criteria D, the authorization

                 2    of a variance may not be of substantial

                 3    detriment.  It may not harm by granting of the

                 4    variance the encroachment of the stair.  And then

                 5    per the applicant's letter of intent, also note

                 6    that the requested variance will place the house

                 7    closer to lot 274, but there will be a

                 8    significant distance between the houses due to

                 9    the shape of the lots.  They've also provided a

                10    GIS map that shows the approximate location and

                11    shape of the lot.

                12             And then finally, showing that the

                13    encroachment is near facing the Kiawah Island

                14    Parkway side of the site, and they have engaged

                15    with the Architectural Review Board as one of the

                16    suggestions for this location of the proposed

                17    (inaudible).

                18             The additional properties -- I mean, the

                19    additional criteria, excuse me, criteria F --

                20    criteria E, sorry, the establishment --

                21    establishment of use not otherwise authorized.

                22    It falls within that criteria that this use would

                23    not allow the establishment of use not being

                24    authorized.

                25             Criteria F where this BZA may not
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                 1    consider profitability when considering this

                 2    variance request.

                 3             And then criteria G, the need for the

                 4    variance may not be the result of the applicant's

                 5    own actions.  Since the applicant site is vacant,

                 6    the proposed structure could be modified without

                 7    the need of a variance.  However, the lot does

                 8    contain several trees and mature vegetation, and

                 9    the applicant letter has also stated that we need

                10    to apply for this variance because of the shape

                11    of the lot, the location of the oaks in the upper

                12    right-hand corner, not because of any action

                13    taken by Mr. Werner.

                14             Criteria of this variance may not be

                15    contrary to the public or neighborhood interest

                16    may not adversely affect other property in the

                17    vicinity and may not interfere with the harmony,

                18    spirit, and intent.  The subject property sits

                19    adjacent to Kiawah Island Parkway and the

                20    cul-de-sac of Summer Tanager.  And then finally,

                21    the Architectural Review Board did review the

                22    particular project, and they granted conceptual

                23    approval, and the applicant has also stated that

                24    the project would not be contrary to the public

                25    interest based upon the submitting of their
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                 1    materials.

                 2             The final criteria, I, regarding

                 3    conflict with the comprehensive plan, the

                 4    applicant has stated that the granting of

                 5    variance does not conflict with the comprehensive

                 6    plan or the purposes of the ordinance.

                 7             And so those are the criteria that was

                 8    outlined in your materials.  You can find within

                 9    the letter -- within the applicant's letter of

                10    intent two diagrams that I didn't include in the

                11    actual staff review, but those images were

                12    referenced for your review.

                13             Additionally included is the

                14    Architectural Review Board conceptual review

                15    letter.  We did have two -- two folks reach out

                16    to staff regarding this particular application.

                17    None of them provided official comments in

                18    writing.  They were just curious to what was on

                19    the site.  I provided them with the information

                20    regarding to this meeting, so I'm not sure if

                21    they have joined us just yet.  But that is all I

                22    have for the first case.

                23             Regarding the decisions, remember that

                24    the BZA has the privy to approve, approve

                25    conditions, or deny, and this is one that
�
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                 1    pertains to this particular variance request.

                 2             Can I pause there and then ask, has Joe

                 3    joined us?

                 4                  MS. LAUGHLIN:  No, he hasn't, John.

                 5                  MR. TAYLOR:  No?  Okay.  So we have

                 6    -- I'm going to pause here.  I do not want to

                 7    move forward without our BZA attorney present.

                 8    Just from a procedural standpoint, it would make

                 9    it really difficult to -- if there is any

                10    challenge to the particular case, from a

                11    procedural standpoint, I think it would be out of

                12    bounds, so I don't want to move forward until we

                13    do -- have made contact with Joe to see where he

                14    is.  It's a little bit unfortunate, but I want to

                15    see if we can get him to join.  Just a moment.

                16                  MR. CASSIDY:  Why don't we break at

                17    this point.  Don't anybody stray too far, and

                18    John, I'll announce it when we have Joe on the

                19    line.  How's that, John?

                20                  MR. TAYLOR:  That works,

                21    Mr. Cassidy.  Thank you so much.

                22                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you.

                23                  (Recess.)

                24                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Interesting first

                25    meeting.
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                 1                  MS. LAUGHLIN:  Hi, everyone.  We're

                 2    still live, so if you need to do anything, just

                 3    hide your screen or mute while we do this short

                 4    break.

                 5                  MR. ROSENFELD:  By the way, my dog

                 6    may make an appearance at some point during the

                 7    meeting.  She comes to work with us every day,

                 8    and you'll notice her because she's a 145-pound

                 9    Great Dane.

                10                  MR. TAYLOR:  Joe will be joining us

                11    very shortly, you guys.  Thank you for your

                12    patience.

                13                  MR. BERNER:  Oh, that's wonderful.

                14                  MS. LAUGHLIN:  John, we have Joe

                15    now.

                16                  MR. TAYLOR:  Awesome.  Thank you,

                17    Keely.  Mr. Cassidy, just to kind of reset where

                18    we are now -- and I've read into the first case

                19    every -- I think -- I tried it with Joe just from

                20    a procedural standpoint to make sure that we are

                21    in accordance with the issues, so I think we can

                22    move forward.  Otherwise, Joe, chime in to just

                23    to share.  We have not sworn in anyone for

                24    testimony.  I think we can do it -- do that.

                25                  MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  John, if you
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                 1    would cease your screen sharing for a moment.  I

                 2    think, Joe, that we probably ought to do this

                 3    swearing in in three parts because there's so

                 4    many people here.  So if -- if those who would

                 5    like to speak with regard to the first case, the

                 6    Summer Tanager case, would raise -- raise your

                 7    hands, Joe will swear you in.

                 8                  MR. WILSON:  All right.  Do you

                 9    affirm that the testimony you're about to give is

                10    the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

                11    truth so help you God?

                12                  MS. LANHAM:  I do.

                13                  MR. MINNER:  I do.

                14                  MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  I -- I think

                15    in that case, we're ready to hear from -- from

                16    the applicant, and that would be Ms. Lanham.

                17                  MS. LANHAM:  Okay.  As Mr. Taylor

                18    informed you, this is a very unusual lot.  It's

                19    not a terribly small lot, but considering the

                20    shape and the location of the cluster of three

                21    grand oaks in the upper right-hand corner, it's

                22    seriously limited in what would be considered the

                23    useable area of the lot.

                24             In fact, if not for those oak trees, if

                25    I was just looking at the shape of the lot
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                 1    without any of the trees on the survey, I would

                 2    have come up with something completely different

                 3    with the house being pretty much parallel to the

                 4    right property line and stepping down or the

                 5    decks and pools, etcetera, towards the left.

                 6             But the oaks definitely stand in the way

                 7    of that type of arrangement.  And actually, it

                 8    was one of the ARB members suggested rotating the

                 9    house parallel to Kiawah Island Parkway, or

                10    approximately parallel, and working it from

                11    there.  And that is when we encountered the issue

                12    of the steps going out into that side setback.

                13             And on that side, however, the

                14    neighboring house is all the way to the rear of

                15    their site on the left so that this would not in

                16    any way impact their lot.  The only thing it

                17    might affect is the view from the cul-de-sac

                18    itself.  And because it's the -- mostly the lower

                19    portion of the stairs and there are several small

                20    oak trees around that corner of the lot, which

                21    could be saved and additional landscape screening

                22    put in there, it would, you know, be barely

                23    noticeable in the neighborhood.  And I believe

                24    by, you know, developing this lot and saving

                25    those oaks, they become more visible to the
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                 1    neighborhood.

                 2             When I first visited the lot, I didn't

                 3    even realize they were there from the street.  I

                 4    had to walk into the lot to see them, but now

                 5    they should be visible to anyone driving down the

                 6    street.  That was, you know, another point that

                 7    it would highlight those and not in any way

                 8    negatively impact the neighborhood.

                 9                  MR. CASSIDY:  Ms. Lanham, I

                10    neglected at the beginning here to ask you to

                11    state your name --

                12                  THE WITNESS:  Oh.

                13                  MR. CASSIDY:  -- and current

                14    address, please.

                15                  MS. LANHAM:  Sorry.  Alice Lanham,

                16    architect, 2978 Cane Slash Road, Johns Island.

                17                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, ma'am.

                18    Any questions for Ms. Lanham?

                19                  MR. BERNER:  No.

                20                  MR. CASSIDY:  Hearing none, anyone

                21    else who would like to speak?

                22                  MR. TAYLOR:  I think Mr. --

                23    Mr. Minner may have wanted to make some comments.

                24                  MR. CASSIDY:  I did see him get

                25    swear -- sworn in, yes.
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                 1                  MR. MINNER:  Yep.  Hi, everybody.

                 2    Name is John Minner, address is 272 Summer

                 3    Tanager, and I just had two quick questions.  One

                 4    is I had an opportunity to speak to Mr. Taylor

                 5    earlier.  He clarified a bunch of items, which

                 6    was very helpful, and I appreciate his

                 7    assistance.

                 8             One concern is that the street itself

                 9    has an exceptionally small footprint, and the

                10    question is, does the setback affect the overall

                11    character of the neighborhood given the

                12    positioning of it?  And I do appreciate, Alice,

                13    your taking into consideration the live oaks.

                14                  MS. LANHAM:  Well, really, it's

                15    along the main part of the street of Summer

                16    Tanager to maintain well over a 25-foot setback.

                17    It's just right down in the corner at the

                18    cul-de-sac where the steps go out more than

                19    5 feet over the -- I should move.  My grandson is

                20    here.

                21             And, you know, as I said, in a

                22    discussion with the landscape architect, we

                23    walked around and feel like we can put a lot of

                24    heavy landscape screening there to really

                25    minimize the impact of those steps as they come
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                 1    down close to the -- the street.

                 2                  MR. MINNER:  Thanks.

                 3                  MS. LANHAM:  Could we pull up the

                 4    site plan?  Is that possible?

                 5                  MR. CASSIDY:  Sure.

                 6                  MS. LANHAM:  Ah, there we go.  Yes.

                 7    As you can see, along the -- most of the street

                 8    along the long edge of the triangle, we're well

                 9    over 25 feet back, and it's just that -- the

                10    little bit of the steps down in the lower

                11    left-hand corner.  And I don't know how big your

                12    screen is.  On mine, they just look like little

                13    dots.  But -- oh, there we go.  That's great.

                14             You can see now there's a number of oak

                15    trees in that corner and then, with some

                16    understory planting, would provide significant

                17    screening for those steps to where, you know,

                18    they wouldn't be visible from the other houses or

                19    really at any point except maybe when you're

                20    driving through around the cul-de-sac itself.

                21             So we just felt like that was -- if we

                22    were going to, you know, go anywhere over a

                23    setback line, that was the corner to do it where

                24    it would have the least effect on the

                25    neighborhood in general.
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                 1                  MR. CASSIDY:  Before I ask for any

                 2    other comments, let me just mention that comments

                 3    should be directed to the Board either in favor

                 4    or in opposition.  If there's a question that

                 5    needs to be answered, we'll direct it to -- to

                 6    the applicant.  Are there any other comments?

                 7    Seeing none, I'd entertain a motion on this

                 8    application.

                 9                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Frank -- Frank, can

                10    I ask a question?

                11                  MR. CASSIDY:  Sure.

                12                  MR. ROSENFELD:  What is the width

                13    of the staircase?

                14                  MS. LANHAM:  5 feet.

                15                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Has any thought

                16    been entertained to bring it to be slightly

                17    narrower?

                18                  MS. LANHAM:  I could ask the ARB if

                19    that would be allowable.  They usually don't like

                20    them to be -- you know, for front stairs, entry

                21    stairs to be narrower, but they might let me pull

                22    them down to maybe 4 feet or something.  I could

                23    ask.

                24                  MR. ROSENFELD:  So --

                25                  MS. LANHAM:  That wasn't mentioned,
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                 1    so -- get down.  Come on.

                 2                  MR. ROSENFELD:  (Inaudible) --

                 3                  MR. CASSIDY:  Correct me if I'm

                 4    wrong, Mrs. -- Ms. Lanham, but is it correct that

                 5    the entire stairwell is in the -- is in the

                 6    setback area?  Is that correct?  So making them

                 7    narrower doesn't -- it only improves that by a

                 8    foot; is that correct?

                 9                  MS. LANHAM:  That would be correct,

                10    yes.

                11                  MR. ROSENFELD:  And the -- you're

                12    saying that where the stairwell is is the front

                13    of the house, correct?

                14                  MS. LANHAM:  Yes.

                15                  MR. ROSENFELD:  The front of the

                16    house faces Summer Tanager?

                17                  MS. LANHAM:  Yes, into the

                18    cul-de-sac.

                19                  MR. TAYLOR:  Mr. Cassidy, could I

                20    also interject just momentarily?  I want to just

                21    remind you also that the ordinance does grant any

                22    open stair into building entrances a 5-foot

                23    allowance.  So even if the stair extended only

                24    5 feet beyond the setback, that would be

                25    approvable administratively, so just keep that in
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                 1    mind.

                 2                  MR. CASSIDY:  Now I'm confused.

                 3                  MS. LANHAM:  Essentially asking for

                 4    an extra 4 feet.

                 5                  MR. CASSIDY:  How -- how far --

                 6    there's the setback, then there's the 5-foot

                 7    allowance.  How far beyond that 5-foot allowance

                 8    does this staircase extend?

                 9                  MS. LANHAM:  4 feet.

                10                  MR. CASSIDY:  I see.  Okay.

                11                  MS. LANHAM:  So instead of being --

                12    well, it would be 20 feet with the allowable

                13    5 feet, but now it's 16 feet off the property

                14    line.

                15                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you.  Other

                16    comments?  Okay.  I'd entertain any motions that

                17    anyone would care to make on this application.

                18    Ben?

                19                  MR. FARABEE:  Yes.  I move that we

                20    approve this application based upon the fact the

                21    nature of the lot, the configuration of the lot

                22    as well as the applicant's attempt to preserve

                23    those three trees, none of which -- it already

                24    looks like it's in danger, but I would support

                25    it.
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                 1                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, Ben.

                 2                  MS. KULICK:  I second that, John --

                 3    Frank.

                 4                  MR. BERNER:  I second.  I have no

                 5    problems with it.

                 6                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, Wendy.  Is

                 7    there any further discussion?  All in favor,

                 8    please say aye.

                 9                  (All respond aye.)

                10                  MR. CASSIDY:  Opposed?  The motion

                11    carries unanimously, and the variance request is

                12    approved.  Thank you, everyone.

                13                  MS. LANHAM:  Thank you.

                14                  MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  Let's move on

                15    to our second case, which is BZA21-000001 at

                16    217 Glen Abbey.  I'd now ask for the Glen Abbey

                17    people to turn on their -- their cameras, and --

                18    and I'd ask those who wish to speak to raise your

                19    hands.  And Joe, if you would swear them in.

                20                  MR. WILSON:  Do you affirm that the

                21    testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

                22    whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help

                23    you God?

                24                  MS. GALASSO:  Yes, I do.

                25                  MR. THOELE:  Yes.  Yes, I do.
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                 1                  MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  Thank you,

                 2    everyone.  John, you're going to present the

                 3    case.

                 4                  MR. TAYLOR:  Thank you,

                 5    Mr. Cassidy.  Our second case today,

                 6    BZA21-000001, is a variance request.  This

                 7    particular variance request is a setback variance

                 8    for approximately 57.2 square feet for a pool

                 9    addition at the subject property of 217 --

                10    217 Glen Abbey, tax map number 264-14-00-067.

                11             The subject property does fall within

                12    the R-1 zoning district and is under the purview

                13    of the Architectural Review Board.  It does sit

                14    adjacent to a golf course and to the south.  The

                15    adjacent property is also R-1.  There is open

                16    space as well located on the side adjacent to the

                17    east, and the subject property is what we

                18    identify as a flag lot.

                19             The ordinance does define setback as a

                20    required minimum distance from the lot line, and

                21    the ordinance defines front setback and rear

                22    setback as those measured from either the street

                23    right-of-way or rear lot line.  The ordinance

                24    also grant that a pool shall be set back a

                25    distance of not less than 10 feet from all lot
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                 1    lines, except that a pool that is elevated where

                 2    it needs to meet the standard building setbacks.

                 3             The applicant did submit to the

                 4    Architectural Review Board in which they were

                 5    granted approval for this particular variance

                 6    request.  And here are a few images of the site.

                 7    The area, you'll actually notice a flag lot off

                 8    of Glen Abbey, the adjacency to the golf course.

                 9             Per records of Charleston County, the

                10    subject property was constructed I believe in

                11    1994, and I will review the staff findings based

                12    upon the criteria submitted, based upon the

                13    evidence submitted.

                14             When it pertains to the first criteria,

                15    criteria A, which speaks to exceptional and

                16    extraordinary conditions, there may be extra --

                17    extraordinary and exceptional conditions

                18    pertaining to this particular lot due to the

                19    required setbacks and existing mature trees and

                20    vegetation on the site.

                21             In addition, the applicant has stated

                22    that on the north -- on the north side, the

                23    property does extend 77 feet from the house, and

                24    this would present itself as a perfect location

                25    for a large pool.  However, the whole area is
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                 1    heavily wooded with mature live oaks, magnolia,

                 2    and palm trees.  The next logical location

                 3    suitable for a pool addition would be in the

                 4    southeast corner of the existing home.  The

                 5    proposed design attached locates the pool in an

                 6    area where no trees will be impacted.  Here's the

                 7    site plan that's showing the proposed location of

                 8    the pool.

                 9             The criteria B where the conditions may

                10    be unique to the subject property, they may not

                11    generally apply to other properties in the

                12    vicinity.  This subject property is -- falls

                13    under the R-1 zoning district, and the remaining

                14    adjacency properties fall in the parks and

                15    recreational zoning district to the east, north,

                16    and to the west.  Existing structures may have

                17    similar setback standards based on the current

                18    ordinance.

                19             And additionally, the letter of intent

                20    that has been provided by the applicant, they

                21    share that the original owner ahead of its time

                22    was invested in the preservation of Kiawah's

                23    natural habitat when building a house and his

                24    care for preservation guidance decision on the

                25    location of the house and the lot and at that
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                 1    time did not foresee adding a pool; therefore,

                 2    did not take into consideration when creating the

                 3    footprint of the house.  The applicant has also

                 4    shared that this particular lot is very private

                 5    with adjacency of one property, 216 Glen Abbey.

                 6             Criteria C speaks to the ordinance that

                 7    217 would prohibit the construction of the pool

                 8    into the required setback.  The pool is elevated

                 9    more than 4 feet and it requires -- and is

                10    required to meet the standard building setbacks.

                11    However, it does not unreasonably restrict the

                12    utilization of the property per the applicant's

                13    letter of intent.  Due to the heavy landscape of

                14    the property, the pool would require an extensive

                15    cleaning system.  Based on the recommendations

                16    from the pool -- contractor of the pool, which

                17    are instructed within the setbacks, it would not

                18    guarantee a pool free of debris.

                19             Additionally, the given boundary limits,

                20    the pool would not have a walkable perimeter.

                21    Only side -- the only side where it would be --

                22    where it -- excuse me, the only side where it

                23    would be possible to stand to access the pool

                24    would be on the deck side.  This configuration

                25    will make it almost impossible to perform a
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                 1    simple manual skimming.

                 2             We also would like to point out that

                 3    proposed design is kept with the width of the

                 4    pool at the time the minimum is mentioned.  The

                 5    useable pool width has been designed at 8 feet in

                 6    line with the existing deck, and the space

                 7    projection beyond the setback is solely utilized

                 8    for the catch basin.

                 9             Criteria D, the authorization of

                10    variance may not be of substantial detriment to

                11    the adjacent properties or the public good, and

                12    the proposed setback encroachment is adjacent to

                13    the golf course.  Since the encroachment is in

                14    the rear yard, only the neighbors across the golf

                15    course -- across -- excuse me, since the adjacent

                16    -- since the encroachment in the rear yard, only

                17    the neighbors across the golf course and across

                18    the pond would affected -- would be affected by

                19    the granting of the variance.  This is

                20    approximately greater than 250 feet greater than

                21    a typical rear yard setback between adjoining

                22    properties.  And the applicant has also shared

                23    that there would be no detriment to the

                24    neighboring property and no impact on the view.

                25             Criteria E, granting of the variance
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                 1    would not allow the establishment of use not

                 2    otherwise permitted.

                 3             And then criteria F, the BZA may not

                 4    consider profitability, and the applicant has

                 5    also shared that this will not result in any

                 6    profitable utilization of the property.  It would

                 7    allow for more comprehensive use of the property.

                 8             And then criteria G where it's the needs

                 9    of the actions and the result of the applicant's

                10    own action, the existing residence is conforming

                11    to lot standards both including setbacks and lot

                12    coverage.  The existing structure could be

                13    maintained.  However, the applicant has stated

                14    that the house was built in 1983.  Following the

                15    ordinance at that time, they purchased the house

                16    in 20 -- in April 2020.  There had been no work

                17    done by a set result in the -- for the requested

                18    variance.

                19             Criteria H speaks to the neighborhood

                20    interest and not adversely affect other property

                21    in the vicinity.  And as stated, the

                22    Architectural Review Board did approve the

                23    variance request.  They stated, quote, the

                24    variance to add a pool and stair over the west

                25    side setback is approved given the home's
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                 1    original placement preserved multiple live oak

                 2    trees to the north, and those trees would be

                 3    impacted for the pool to be located within the

                 4    bit of area to the north.

                 5             The applicant's letter of intent also

                 6    states that we believe we -- that the Board

                 7    should grant the variance, and the project will

                 8    be in harmony with the neighborhood and would not

                 9    interfere or affect other property in the

                10    vicinity.

                11             The final criteria there, not

                12    substantially conflicting with the comprehensive

                13    plan.  As stated in your materials, a variance

                14    may not substantially conflict with the

                15    comprehensive plan or the ordinance.  It does

                16    fall under the required maximum lot coverage,

                17    33 percent, sitting at approximately

                18    30.2 percent.  And the applicant has stated also

                19    that this would not conflict with the

                20    comprehensive plan.

                21             Just a reminder, in your materials, I'll

                22    go through several additional documents that were

                23    provided for your review.  Again, here is the

                24    location of the pool.  The catch -- pool catch

                25    basement -- basin that includes approximately
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                 1    260 square feet, which that would include for

                 2    about -- account for about 1.2 percent of the lot

                 3    coverage.  Many of the provided numbers and specs

                 4    on the actual pool was included in your

                 5    materials.

                 6             Again, here's another exhibit showing

                 7    the location of the pool sizing.  Applicant also

                 8    provided some 3D shots and additional images or

                 9    renderings to show the existing and proposed

                10    location of the pool.  Here, you see sort of an

                11    aerial shot.  Again, existing -- the same corner,

                12    southwest corner, existing and proposed of the

                13    proposed pool aligning with the existing deck.

                14             That provides a completion of the staff

                15    review.  To my notes, there were no property

                16    owners that reached out in regards to -- adjacent

                17    property owners that reached out in regards to

                18    this particular application.  On the line are the

                19    project representative, Mr. Andrew Thoele -- I

                20    probably screwed it up -- as well as Ms. Maria,

                21    who is the property owner.

                22             And so that concludes my particular

                23    staff review.  Remember that the Board of Zoning

                24    -- Board of Zoning Appeals may approve, approve

                25    of conditions, or deny the case, and this is for
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                 1    the reduction of the required 30-foot side

                 2    setback.  This is for approximately 57.25 square

                 3    feet for the pool addition.  Thank you.

                 4                  MR. CASSIDY:  Questions for John?

                 5    I have one question, John.  If you could pull up

                 6    that Blue Haven Pools picture.

                 7                  MR. TAYLOR:  That one?

                 8                  MR. CASSIDY:  That's the -- just

                 9    passed it.  So the variances with regard to that

                10    -- that thin rectangle to the -- that's right --

                11    to the left of this -- of this diagram and what's

                12    to the left of the property is the Turtle Point

                13    Golf -- Golf Course, correct?

                14                  MR. TAYLOR:  Yes.

                15                  MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  Any other

                16    questions for John?

                17                  MR. ROSENFELD:  John, on one of the

                18    diagrams I have, it shows a new deck stair.  Has

                19    that been removed from the proposal?

                20                  MR. TAYLOR:  You said in one of the

                21    exhibits it shows a new deck stair?

                22                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Right.

                23                  MR. TAYLOR:  I may let the

                24    applicant speak to that.  I'm not sure exactly

                25    where you're reference -- referencing.
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                 1                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Okay.

                 2    (Inaudible) --

                 3                  MR. TAYLOR:  Oh.  Is it this --

                 4    this image there?

                 5                  MR. ROSENFELD:  On that image, the

                 6    top right corner.  No, go back.  The one that was

                 7    in color.  That one.  Now move the cursor to the

                 8    right.

                 9                  MR. TAYLOR:  This area?

                10                  MR. ROSENFELD:  (Inaudible).

                11    That's a home deck stair, which to me is also

                12    encroaching in the area.  And --

                13                  MR. TAYLOR:  Yeah, so the -- the --

                14    the --

                15                  MR. ROSENFELD:  -- they have an

                16    existing deck stair, so...

                17                  MR. TAYLOR:  So the ordinance

                18    allows an encroachment of open deck into this

                19    setback granting of 5 feet, so that would -- that

                20    would not need necessarily approval.

                21                  MR. ROSENFELD:  So in other words,

                22    if we approve the extension for the pool, the

                23    deck stair could be brought in on its own?

                24                  MR. TAYLOR:  This particular

                25    request is narrowed to the pool itself.  The --
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                 1    the new deck that's being proposed is not within

                 2    this particular application, but it would meet

                 3    the requirements of the zoning ordinance.

                 4                  MR. ROSENFELD:  In other words, if

                 5    we approve the extension of the property line for

                 6    the pool, then it follows that the deck stair

                 7    could then simply be put in without a request for

                 8    a variance?

                 9                  MR. TAYLOR:  We -- if I understand

                10    your question correctly, the -- the new deck

                11    that's there would -- you're asking whether or

                12    not that would be part of the application that

                13    you're approving?

                14                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Yes.

                15                  MR. TAYLOR:  So you are

                16    specifically granting relief from the pool

                17    addition.  The new deck stairs that is being

                18    proposed would meet the requirements of the

                19    zoning ordinance without the need of a variance.

                20                  MR. CASSIDY:  If I may, Larry, the

                21    -- if we weren't talking about this pool at all

                22    today, there would be no need to request the

                23    variance for that stairwell because that's in

                24    keeping with the -- with the variance as it

                25    stands.
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                 1                  MR. ROSENFELD:  You wouldn't --

                 2    you'd come out 5 feet from the steps?

                 3                  MR. CASSIDY:  That's right.  That's

                 4    -- that's allowed under the -- under the

                 5    regulations.

                 6                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Okay.

                 7                  MR. CASSIDY:  Other questions?

                 8                  MS. GALASSO:  If I can interject.

                 9    That's correct, because we spoke to the Kiawah

                10    Island --

                11                  MR. CASSIDY:  I'm sorry, ma'am.

                12    Let's --

                13                  MS. GALASSO:  I'm sorry.  Oh, I'm

                14    sorry.  I'm Maria Giovanna Galasso.  I'm the

                15    owner of the property.

                16                  MR. CASSIDY:  Let's just -- if you

                17    could wait just one second.

                18                  MS. GALASSO:  Oh, yeah.

                19                  MR. CASSIDY:  We're still -- we're

                20    working on questions about John's presentation.

                21                  MS. GALASSO:  Oh, I was trying to

                22    answer Mr. Larry's question.  That was all.

                23    That's it.

                24                  MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  Any other

                25    questions for John?  Okay.  Hearing none, we'll
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                 1    now hear from the applicant.  Let's see.  Is that

                 2    Ms. DeGonzague?  I'm sorry if I'm pronouncing

                 3    that improperly.  No, I'm sorry.  It's -- I'm

                 4    wrong about that.  The project representative is

                 5    Mr. Thoele?

                 6                  MR. THOELE:  Yes, sir.  It's Andrew

                 7    Thoele.  Thank you.  I'm representing Maria as

                 8    well.  She's on the line.  Maria -- Maria

                 9    Giovanna Galasso.  She's the homeowner.  I'm with

                10    the Island Company and Will Shiver.  We're

                11    located in the Bohicket Marina at 1900B Andell

                12    Bluff.

                13             I think Maria was getting ready to

                14    clarify something for Larry, and I think that

                15    that was cleared up by Mr. Taylor as well.  And,

                16    again, we're just proposing to encroach on that

                17    30-foot setback with the pool trough or the catch

                18    basin for the infinity edge.  Maria had put

                19    together that comprehensive list of why she

                20    believes this variance should be approved, and I

                21    think that it has covered just about every

                22    aspect.

                23             If anybody has any additional questions,

                24    I'm happy to answer, and Maria is also very

                25    knowledgeable on the topic as she's actually the
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                 1    one who originally proposed to put this pool in

                 2    this location based on the lot, its location, its

                 3    layout, its foliage, etcetera.  And that's it

                 4    from me.

                 5                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you.

                 6    Ms. Malullo [sic], would you care to add

                 7    anything?

                 8                  MS. GALASSO:  No.  I just want to,

                 9    you know, thank you, first of all, for having me

                10    here.  Thank you, Mr. Taylor, for the

                11    introduction of the case here.  I think, again, I

                12    just want to point out that the only reason why

                13    we're asking for this variance is because we are

                14    preserving the natural habitat of the property.

                15             As you can see on the top here, this is

                16    all part of our property here.  We would have

                17    that -- plenty of space to put a fairly large

                18    pool there.  But, again, to preserve the nature

                19    of the land, we are opting for a small footprint,

                20    and the only area outside of the edge is the

                21    catch basin.  This (inaudible) need then an

                22    actual -- actual items.

                23             You know, the Architectural Review

                24    Board, they came to the site, and they were

                25    actually the one to suggest that we do that, you
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                 1    know, that (inaudible) possible.  As -- I think

                 2    that, as specified in the letter, the only area

                 3    where we would stand is right here, but it's not

                 4    available (inaudible) where you can actually walk

                 5    around, so that's the only place.  So that's the

                 6    only place where you will be able to perform

                 7    clearing of the water.  So that -- in case we

                 8    would not be approved, we will need an intensive,

                 9    you know, infiltration system.  But even

                10    (inaudible) stated, that, of course, it would not

                11    be able to keep up with the continuous falling of

                12    the foliage from the tree around the pool.

                13             So, again, our only really goal is to

                14    preserve the landscaping of the property as much

                15    as possible.  That's it.

                16                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, ma'am.

                17    Any questions for the applicants?

                18                  MR. FARABEE:  I have one.

                19                  MR. CASSIDY:  Yes, Ben.

                20                  MR. FARABEE:  Is the existing wood

                21    walkway to continue to exist?

                22                  MR. THOELE:  Yes, it is.

                23                  MR. FARABEE:  Thank you.

                24                  MR. CASSIDY:  Other questions?

                25    Anyone else wish to speak?  Seeing no one, I
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                 1    would entertain any motions that anyone would

                 2    care to make.

                 3                  MS. KULICK:  Frank --

                 4                  MR. ROSENFELD:  I would make a

                 5    motion to approve.

                 6                  MS. KULICK:  Larry, would you

                 7    include attaching the note in the application

                 8    about additional landscaping be required?

                 9                  MR. ROSENFELD:  I personally would,

                10    yes.  But I assume considering that Ms.

                11    Giovanna's comments about maintaining the beauty

                12    of the land, I assume that she would landscape it

                13    anyway.

                14                  MS. GALASSO:  We -- yeah, I've been

                15    --

                16                  MR. ROSENFELD:  I don't want to

                17    make assumptions.  They're usually crazy.  But

                18    the way she spoke, I really believe she would

                19    consider the beautification of the property, and

                20    I have a feeling that whatever she does there

                21    will be landscaped well.

                22                  MS. KULICK:  I don't disagree with

                23    you, Larry, but I think for the record, we ought

                24    to make sure that it's included in our motion.

                25                  MR. ROSENFELD:  I agree.
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                 1                  MS. GALASSO:  Yeah.  We had

                 2    actually already included a proposed landscaping

                 3    from a landscaping architect to the Architectural

                 4    Review Board, so we have covered that.

                 5                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Okay, Wendy.  Then

                 6    I will amend my motion to add with additional

                 7    landscaping.

                 8                  MS. KULICK:  And then I will second

                 9    it.

                10                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Thank you.

                11                  MR. CASSIDY:  Any further

                12    discussion?  All in favor, please say aye.

                13                  (All respond aye.)

                14                  MR. CASSIDY:  Opposed?  Motion

                15    carries unanimously, and we approve this -- this

                16    variance in keeping with the character of the lot

                17    and the need to preserve the vegetation on the

                18    lot.  So thank you, everyone.

                19                  MS. GALASSO:  Thank you very much.

                20                  MR. THOELE:  Thank you.

                21                  MR. CASSIDY:  All right.  Let's --

                22    let's move on to our next case, which is

                23    BZA21-000002 at 41A Eugenia.  Let's have those

                24    folks turn on their cameras, and let's -- those

                25    who are going to speak, please raise your hands,
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                 1    and Joe will swear you in.

                 2                  MR. WILSON:  Do you affirm that the

                 3    testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

                 4    whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help

                 5    you God?

                 6                  MR. HUEY:  I do.

                 7                  MR. KLEINE:  Yes.

                 8                  MR. CASSIDY:  Okay, thank you,

                 9    folks.  So first we will hear from John on this

                10    case.

                11                  MR. TAYLOR:  Thank you,

                12    Mr. Cassidy.  Final case of today, BZA21-000002.

                13    The subject property is 41A Eugenia Avenue.  The

                14    applicant is Mr. Mark Kleine, property owner,

                15    being represented by Nicole Vieth and Bill Huey

                16    of Bill Huey and Associates.  The subject

                17    property does fall within the R-1 zoning district

                18    and is approximately 14,486 square feet in size.

                19    The subject property is located within the

                20    developed lands and is not under the purview of

                21    the Architectural Review Board.

                22             Today's request is a variance to

                23    increase the maximum allowable lot coverage.  Lot

                24    coverage for the subject property is 33 percent,

                25    and the request is to increase that lot coverage
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                 1    by approximately 2.15 percent, or 311 square

                 2    feet, to approximately 35.15 percent, and this is

                 3    for a new single-family residence.

                 4             To give you the ordinance requirements,

                 5    reminder that lot coverage is the percentage of

                 6    lot area that is impervious to stormwater,

                 7    including buildings, decks, walls, driveways,

                 8    front walkways, and other pervious surfaces as

                 9    defined by the ordinance and determined by the

                10    planning director.  And the ordinance specifies a

                11    maximum lot coverage percentage for each zoning

                12    district where there are some exclusions from lot

                13    coverage, and those exclusions would include at

                14    grade boardwalks and landscape retaining walls

                15    that are below 3 feet in height or the access

                16    drive located on the pole of a flag lot as

                17    defined by the ordinance.

                18             Additionally, the ordinance does grant

                19    allowable increase of maximum lot coverage.  This

                20    would include areas not defined by the ordinance

                21    -- I'm sorry, driveways not defined by the

                22    ordinance that utilize pervious materials and

                23    pervious walks and patios, raised courtyards and

                24    planters created by walls 3 feet or less.  For

                25    this particular subject property, 33 percent lot
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                 1    coverage is the maximum lot coverage allowed, and

                 2    that corresponds to an allowable increase of

                 3    20 percent.

                 4             There are two more definitions that I

                 5    think -- that are relevant to today's case that I

                 6    want to refocus.  The ordinance defines

                 7    impervious surface.  This is any material which

                 8    prevents, impedes, or slows infiltration or

                 9    absorption of water directly into the ground at

                10    the rate of absorption of vegetation bearing

                11    soils, including buildings, asphalt, concrete,

                12    gravel, and other surfaces as determined by the

                13    planning director.

                14             Also, driveways.  A driveway is defined

                15    as a minimum 10-foot path -- vehicular travel

                16    way, rather, of any surface treatment, whether

                17    pervious or impervious, from the property line to

                18    the garage.  This includes guest parking as well

                19    as required backup and turnaround areas for safe

                20    vehicular movement as determined by the planning

                21    director.

                22             Within your materials are several

                23    exhibits.  What I want to do is refer to just a

                24    few images.  41A, again, we are sitting in R-1

                25    zoning district adjacent to the beach.  Subject
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                 1    property is vacant and sits adjacent to one home

                 2    to the west and another vacant lot to the east.

                 3             Just also in your materials, I've

                 4    included a note that, for those of you on the

                 5    Board, appears to (inaudible) members, applicant

                 6    applied for a variance in 2020 requesting relief

                 7    of approximately 3.57 percent from the maximum

                 8    allowable lot coverage.  That proposal of the lot

                 9    coverage for that request was approximately

                10    39.04 percent, including total primary lot

                11    coverage of 36.57 percent.  And that request was

                12    denied by the Board.

                13             Today's request asks for relief of

                14    approximately 2.15 percent from the maximum

                15    allowable lot coverage, and this equates to

                16    approximately a 1.42, or 205 square feet,

                17    reduction in the primary lot coverage from that

                18    previous proposal.  A site visit was conducted,

                19    and at the time, that findings, I will outline

                20    that.  It pertains to the criteria.  Essentially

                21    just from a high level, that house was shifted.

                22    That's how you got the decrease in lot coverage

                23    pertaining to the actual driveway.

                24             When it comes to the criteria, criteria

                25    A, there are extraordinary and exceptional
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                 1    conditions to the -- to the -- to the particular

                 2    piece of property here at 41A Eugenia.  There may

                 3    not be extraordinary and exceptional conditions

                 4    pertaining to the subject property.  The subject

                 5    property is currently vacant.  However, per the

                 6    applicant's letter of intent, 41A Eugenia is

                 7    situated next to a property that has a very large

                 8    7,321 heated and cooled square foot home.  In

                 9    addition to the home, there's an extensive raised

                10    pool and pool deck at the furthest rear of the

                11    lot.  And additionally, there's a large grade

                12    change between our client's property and the

                13    neighbor's property towards the rear.  And by

                14    allowing the internal draining driveway, we will

                15    be able to situate the proposed home of

                16    41A Eugenia so that the owners can achieve some

                17    views from the neighboring elevated pool deck.

                18             Pertaining to criteria B, the conditions

                19    may not -- may -- the conditions may be unique to

                20    the subject property and may not generally apply

                21    to other properties in the vicinity.  The

                22    property is located R-1 zoning district, and

                23    adjacent properties are also located within the

                24    R-1 zoning district as both to the east and to

                25    the west.  Per the applicant's letter of intent,
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                 1    quote, the existing neighboring home was

                 2    constructed in or about 2001, and we believe the

                 3    size of the elevation is only -- structure is not

                 4    compliant with the current zoning ordinance, but

                 5    also noting, although not confirmed, and

                 6    therefore not a typical condition of most

                 7    properties as well as a significant grade change,

                 8    which is rare in the Lowcountry.

                 9             Criteria C, the application of the

                10    ordinance of 41A Eugenia prohibited the

                11    construction of proposed single-family home.  It

                12    does exceed the maximum allowable lot coverage

                13    and does not unreasonably restrict the

                14    utilization of property as the subject property

                15    is currently vacant.  Per the applicant's letter

                16    of intent, due to the elevation and the size of

                17    the pool of 39 Eugenia, the typical views of the

                18    oceanfront property are limited, should the

                19    structure be required to be more towards the

                20    street due to the driveway material

                21    interpretation.

                22             Criteria D, the authorization of the

                23    variance may not be of substantial detriment or

                24    the public -- to the adjacent properties or the

                25    public good.  The proposed plan provided pervious
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                 1    driveway material utilizing an internal catchment

                 2    system.  The character of the zoning district may

                 3    be harmed by the granting of the variance with

                 4    the increase in lot coverage beyond the allowable

                 5    maximum lot coverage.  The applicant's letter of

                 6    intent has stated, quote, we believe that

                 7    (inaudible) draining pervious driveway would be

                 8    substantial improvement to the adjacent

                 9    properties by capturing the water within the lot

                10    and allow it to infiltrate into the land slowly.

                11    This would prevent water runoff into the street

                12    during a rainfall event.  The clients have -- the

                13    clients have been working with Mr. Barkley, owner

                14    39 [ph], who has agreed to allow the clients'

                15    southeast corner -- southwest corner of their

                16    house to be 12 feet less -- 12 feet or less

                17    closer to the ocean than the northeast corner of

                18    the Barkleys' existing home.

                19             Criteria E, granting of the variance

                20    would not allow the establishment of the use not

                21    otherwise permitted.  Extend a physically

                22    nonconforming use of land or change the zoning

                23    district boundaries.  Should the BZA approve the

                24    increase in primary lot coverage, this variance

                25    would not allow the establishment of use not
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                 1    otherwise permitted.  It would not extend

                 2    physically and nonconforming use of land and

                 3    would not change the zoning district boundaries.

                 4             Criteria F, BZA may not consider

                 5    profitability in the variance.  The applicant

                 6    stated the variance would not be considered so

                 7    the property may be utilized for profit.

                 8    However, the need for the variance may be the

                 9    result of the applicant's own actions.  As

                10    stated, the subject property is vacant, and the

                11    structure and site could be redesigned without

                12    the need of a variance to meet the current lot

                13    coverage standards.  Per the applicant's letter

                14    of intent, the home is in the planning stages, so

                15    we're not asking for a variance (inaudible).

                16             Criteria H would not be contrary to the

                17    public.  The staff states the granting of the

                18    variance may be contrary to the public or

                19    neighborhood interest and may adversely affect

                20    the property in the vicinity and may not

                21    interfere with the harmony, spirit, intent, and

                22    purposes of these regulations.  The subject

                23    property is not under the purview of the

                24    Architectural Review Board, and the applicant has

                25    stated that we believe that should -- we believe
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                 1    should the Board grant a variance, the project

                 2    will be in the harmony with the neighborhood and

                 3    will not interfere with or affect other property

                 4    in the vicinity but hopefully improve the water

                 5    management of the area.

                 6             Criteria I, the final criteria, which

                 7    the granting of the variance does not

                 8    substantially conflict with the comprehensive

                 9    plan or the zoning ordinance.  It may not consist

                10    -- may not substantially conflict with the

                11    comprehensive plan or the zoning ordinance.  The

                12    applicant's proposed plan does exceed the maximum

                13    allowable lot coverage of 33 percent.  However,

                14    per the applicant's letter of intent, we

                15    understand from conversations with Mr. Taylor,

                16    the City is working on an amendment to the

                17    comprehensive plans that are handled.  Stormwater

                18    management, we believe that by containing water

                19    from our property within the lot, we are not just

                20    (inaudible) but helping to be pro-active to that

                21    plan.

                22             Within your materials, I also want to

                23    note that there were several exhibits provided,

                24    and so just for the record, the supplementary --

                25    supplementary packet that included a number of
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                 1    letters, some individuals looking to participate,

                 2    I'm not sure if all of those individuals are on

                 3    today, we did receive letters either in

                 4    opposition or support of the application.

                 5             And that concludes the staff review.  If

                 6    there are any questions, I'll entertain those

                 7    now.

                 8                  MR. CASSIDY:  I have a few

                 9    questions, John.

                10                  MR. TAYLOR:  Okay.

                11                  MR. CASSIDY:  The -- the

                12    applicant's letter states at one point, we

                13    understand that the planning director has agreed

                14    to interpret our engineered system as completely

                15    pervious.  Is that a correct statement?

                16                  MR. TAYLOR:  So we -- we discussed

                17    this several times.  The actual interpretation of

                18    pervious based on it being able to allow water to

                19    percolate to the site, there is no official -- by

                20    -- by ordinance, there is no official allowance

                21    by what the -- what is pervious or impervious.

                22    The definition of driveway does allow -- does not

                23    allow it to be calculated towards pervious.

                24             So based on that statement, yes, we

                25    would agree that -- or I would agree that based
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                 1    on a pre and post interpretation of water being

                 2    able to subdue into soils, that it would be a

                 3    pervious material, yes.

                 4                  MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  But in your

                 5    review, you included the driveway on the primary

                 6    lot coverage even though it's fully pervious?

                 7                  MR. TAYLOR:  Yes.

                 8                  MR. CASSIDY:  And the reason for

                 9    that -- the reason the driveways were originally

                10    included in primary lot coverage is because of

                11    the -- because of the potential for -- for

                12    compaction, and thus, no longer being completely

                13    pervious.  The applicant is -- is saying that

                14    their engineered driveway system, that would --

                15    that would not take place, that it would --

                16    compaction would never be an issue.

                17             But as I understand it, John, for you --

                18    in order for you to remove a driveway of this

                19    sort from primary lot coverage calculations would

                20    require some action by the planning commission;

                21    is that correct?

                22                  MR. TAYLOR:  So we have nothing

                23    built into the zoning ordinance that would give a

                24    sort of engineered calculation of what would be

                25    allowed from an engineering standpoint of
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                 1    pervious/impervious surfaces to stormwater

                 2    management (inaudible).  So as it's defined in

                 3    the zoning ordinance, whether a driveway is

                 4    pervious or impervious, meaning whether water

                 5    matriculates into the soil or does not

                 6    matriculate through into the soil, we calculate

                 7    that towards primary lot coverage, meaning that

                 8    number is essentially equated to any other area

                 9    on the site that would be improved.  So if it's

                10    under roof structure, it would be calculated the

                11    same way.

                12             Reason being, you alluded to it, over

                13    time, compaction is one of those ideals -- or one

                14    of those results of impervious material just that

                15    in the current zoning ordinance, we do not have a

                16    metric to give pervious materials as some other

                17    jurisdictions may have an actual definition or

                18    some metric to give impervious -- pervious to

                19    define that -- what that number may be of how

                20    fast water may matriculate into the site.

                21             As stated in the materials, stormwater

                22    management in addition to a lot of the flood

                23    mitigation efforts on the island, that would take

                24    some amendments from a greater standpoint of

                25    involving many stakeholders, including on island,
�
                                                                      57



                 1    Architectural Review Board, the -- looking at

                 2    development agreements as well as our planning

                 3    commission who would make a recommendation.  That

                 4    actually would -- approval would come through

                 5    town counsel.

                 6             That is, today, as this is being

                 7    interpreted and applied to today's ordinance, we

                 8    can't necessarily look at a future ordinance that

                 9    would make a decision on today's ordinance.  But

                10    as of today, we don't have anything that's in the

                11    zoning ordinance that would give a specific

                12    definition to a rate flow or something of that

                13    nature.

                14                  MR. CASSIDY:  I guess speaking for

                15    myself, I encourage the planning commission and

                16    other entities to look at this style of a -- of

                17    engineered driveway solutions since it appears to

                18    -- to assist in managing stormwater, but I

                19    understand where we're at today.

                20             Other questions --

                21                  MR. BERNER:  Frank, I had --

                22                  MR. CASSIDY:  Yeah, sure, Russ.  Go

                23    ahead.

                24                  MR. BERNER:  I'm a licensed

                25    professional engineer, and these kind of
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                 1    system -- the percolating system will work in

                 2    certain locations.  One of which I do not believe

                 3    will work is a property so close to the beach --

                 4    well, particularly an oceanfront property.

                 5    Percolating concrete does not have sand, which

                 6    gives it the (inaudible) and does actually allow

                 7    water to percolate through it.  But it's readily

                 8    going to be clogged in an oceanfront environment.

                 9    I actually don't think it should be excluded from

                10    the lot coverage for that reason.

                11             Significant maintenance can be done, but

                12    I don't know there's a way we can get a

                13    maintenance bond of some sort to ensure that

                14    occurs because within a couple of years, two or

                15    three years, windblown sand will -- will clog it

                16    up.  So I do have that concern with respect to

                17    use of this concrete on an oceanfront

                18    environment.

                19                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you.

                20                  MR. BERNER:  I also have a question

                21    to John with respect to the drawing that you

                22    showed earlier with respect to calculation of the

                23    lot coverage.  There's a -- if you can go back.

                24    There it is.  You have --

                25                  MR. TAYLOR:  This one?
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                 1                  MR. BERNER:  Yes, sir.  I'm just

                 2    trying to understand, why would pervious pavers

                 3    be excluded from the lot coverage calculation

                 4    leading to 35.15 percent?

                 5                  MR. TAYLOR:  So the pervious

                 6    pavers, the ordinance does allow a few

                 7    exceptions, so aggregate [ph] pervious pavers are

                 8    one of those things that would not count towards

                 9    the primary lot coverage.  I'm going to give you

                10    the section of the ordinance that speaks to that.

                11    Essentially the -- there's a number of exclusions

                12    beyond essentially the building footprint that

                13    allows -- when I spoke of the allowable increase,

                14    this is one of those things that you would be

                15    able to go over the maximum allowable coverage if

                16    you do these things.  So one of those things is

                17    allowing pervious sort of pathways, and we would

                18    count these pervious pavers as sort of a pathway.

                19                  MR. BERNER:  I understand.  All

                20    right.  So that's a fair comment.  Looking at the

                21    landscaping plan, though, I do not see where

                22    these pervious pavers were to be located.

                23                  MR. TAYLOR:  That -- on looking on

                24    this image, it would be sort of planned north,

                25    light blue-shaded area.  And I'll let the
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                 1    applicant speak to that.  I'm not sure that -- I

                 2    believe that's where the -- that reference is as

                 3    well as the entry -- the plans -- the entry part

                 4    of this -- the front stairway.  Those are all

                 5    pervious materials there.

                 6                  MR. BERNER:  Got it.  Okay.  And I

                 7    also have one other further comment.  Going back

                 8    to -- there was a different landscaping plan that

                 9    showed the -- an offset of 12 feet of the front

                10    elevation -- or the front facade, I should say,

                11    of this property to the neighboring property.

                12    Yes, that's the one.  At the bottom, you see a

                13    12-foot offset.  Do you see where I'm referring

                14    to?  Right there.  Yes.

                15                  MR. TAYLOR:  This?

                16                  MR. BERNER:  Yes, sir.  I'm just

                17    kind of curious why there is that offset because

                18    as that offset is generating more driveway

                19    surface area which then increases the lot

                20    coverage calculation.  If the -- if there was not

                21    an offset, I don't know what the math would be,

                22    but the driveway overage would be much less and

                23    maybe closer to the -- to the allowable value.

                24    Do you --

                25                  MR. TAYLOR:  That would be a
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                 1    question I would leave to the applicants to -- to

                 2    address.

                 3                  MR. BERNER:  Okay.  Okay.

                 4                  MR. CASSIDY:  Any other questions

                 5    for John before I call on the applicant?

                 6                  MS. KULICK:  Yes, Frank.  This is

                 7    Wendy.  I've got one technical question first,

                 8    and that is in -- in section I, we -- it says

                 9    that the applicant's letter of intent stated, and

                10    this was in quotes, that the City is working on

                11    an amendment.  Given that it's the Town -- we're

                12    a town and not a city, from a legal standpoint,

                13    does that have any effect on the application?

                14                  MR. TAYLOR:  I would say no.  I

                15    mean, I -- I believe the applicant -- I don't

                16    want to speak for the applicant, but I think that

                17    was just sort of an interpretation of municipal

                18    government, but I hear that often that people

                19    refer to the town as a city.  But I don't want to

                20    speak for the applicant, and they can make that

                21    clarification.

                22                  MS. KULICK:  Okay.  I just want to

                23    make sure from a legal standpoint that doesn't

                24    impact the application.  The other thing I'm just

                25    not 100 percent clear on is how increasing the
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                 1    lot coverage would allow different views.

                 2                  MR. TAYLOR:  So when -- could you

                 3    rephrase your question?

                 4                  MS. KULICK:  Well, in other words,

                 5    if the -- if moving the location would increase

                 6    the views or allow different views, I could

                 7    understand that.  But I don't understand how just

                 8    increasing the amount of lot coverage would allow

                 9    for this.

                10                  MR. TAYLOR:  I think that may be

                11    another question for the applicant.

                12                  MS. KULICK:  Okay.

                13                  MR. TAYLOR:  But from -- from a --

                14    from a -- just a macro level, the shifting of the

                15    home would adjust the lot coverage based on

                16    today's application as we've seen, the previous

                17    application where the driveway was a little

                18    larger being on the length of the driveway as the

                19    home was shifted away from the ocean.  So I think

                20    that's where you're going, but I would leave that

                21    to the applicants to kind of maybe further

                22    clarify.

                23                  MS. KULICK:  Okay.  Thanks.

                24                  MR. CASSIDY:  Other questions for

                25    John?
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                 1                  MR. FARABEE:  I have a question.

                 2                  MR. CASSIDY:  Yes, Ben.

                 3                  MR. FARABEE:  John, has your

                 4    determination of pervious versus impervious of

                 5    the driveway changed since we reviewed this the

                 6    first time?

                 7                  MR. TAYLOR:  It has not.

                 8                  MR. FARABEE:  It has not?

                 9                  MR. TAYLOR:  Yeah.  So the --

                10    everything that -- everything essentially is the

                11    same from the previous case as far as that

                12    position.  The only additional documents that

                13    were provided by the applicant that reassured --

                14    I think sort of a few Board members may have had

                15    questions regarding the specs and numbers

                16    regarding runoff pre and post improvement.

                17             And so staff's position is looking at

                18    lot coverage from the interpretation of whether

                19    it's pervious or -- or impervious, and so the

                20    definition of pervious in the staff's position

                21    has not affected why we -- why we are here for

                22    the need of the variance.

                23                  MR. FARABEE:  Okay.

                24                  MR. CASSIDY:  Any other questions?

                25    Okay.  I'd ask the applicant to make their
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                 1    presentation, please.

                 2                  MR. HUEY:  Good morning, Board

                 3    members.  My name is Bill Huey.  I'm an

                 4    architect.  I'm representing my clients, the

                 5    Kleines.  We did have the privilege to present to

                 6    you before this application.  We have made

                 7    modifications to this application.  I don't know

                 8    if you would like for us to start over or

                 9    basically address the modifications that we made

                10    prior to our presentation.

                11             The main thing I want to -- did want to

                12    point out is I believe we have a couple new

                13    members on our meeting today.  It's concerning a

                14    couple of major points that we left with last

                15    time, one of those being our immediate neighbor,

                16    Mr. Barkley, was on the meeting Zoom call before.

                17    He did voice some concerns about the positioning

                18    of the house.  This goes to the question of the

                19    12-foot.

                20             We ended up working with Mr. Barkley.

                21    Our client, Mr. Kleine, and Mr. Barkley had

                22    several conversations together.  I believe we

                23    have come to a solution that was amenable to the

                24    Barkleys, and I believe he has written a letter

                25    in support of what we're proposing at this time.
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                 1    That was a major point last time, that we needed

                 2    to work with Mr. Barkley to have an amenable

                 3    solution with him, which we have done.

                 4             The other thing I did want to point out,

                 5    the -- and just to make a point, Mr. Berner, I

                 6    appreciate your points about the engineering and

                 7    the driveway and driveway systems, and you are

                 8    correct that the pervious concrete and other

                 9    materials, I believe that's our interpretation of

                10    the ordinance the reason why, even with pervious

                11    materials such as pervious concrete, are

                12    interpreted as the middle 10 feet of that as

                13    being impervious is because of their nature to

                14    clog as you described.  That's why we're not

                15    really proposing a pervious concrete sytem.

                16    We're actually proposing an internally draining

                17    concrete driveway system, which basically all

                18    water that hits the driveway is captured and

                19    diverted internally into a drain and then into an

                20    adjacent well system and infiltration, which the

                21    ordinance also allows percolation and

                22    infiltration.

                23             And one of the requirements of our last

                24    review was that the Board wanted to see some

                25    engineering data to that effect.  At the time of
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                 1    our last meeting, we're actually in line to get

                 2    with that engineer as the world has kind of

                 3    gotten pretty busy lately.  We have now followed

                 4    up with that engineering data that the Board was

                 5    looking for, and that is also included in our

                 6    current submittal packet.

                 7             So what we -- we sort of left the

                 8    meeting last time understanding was that there

                 9    was more data that we needed to compile and also

                10    then discussions with our neighbor about our

                11    positioning situation, which we've done both of

                12    those in good effort and good faith and I believe

                13    in good -- excuse me, I believe we addressed

                14    those points, and I believe the documentation is

                15    in submittal to the support of that.

                16             Really, the difference is where we are

                17    today than where we were before, and while we're

                18    asking for less now is because of our

                19    repositioning and our discussions with

                20    Mr. Barkley, again, to a solution that he found

                21    to be amenable to -- to his interest as well.

                22                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, Mr. Huey.

                23    Questions for Mr. Huey?

                24                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Yes, I have one.

                25    If these -- I'm not an architect, so I'm asking
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                 1    this off the cuff.  From the drawing that's up

                 2    now, if the size of the driveway is contributing

                 3    so much to the percentage of lot usage, could you

                 4    not redesign it so that you enter the garage

                 5    instead of having to come up and turn 90 degrees

                 6    to the right creating that huge apron, suppose

                 7    you just turn the garage 90 degrees, and you

                 8    could pull straight in and that would eliminate

                 9    the apron and reduce the amount of lot coverage?

                10                  MR. HUEY:  I do believe that is a

                11    possibility.  There were a couple of reasons that

                12    we tried to do that.  That -- that is seen as

                13    less aesthetically pleasing from a neighborhood

                14    context.  I know sometimes the ARB -- I know

                15    we're not involved with the ARB in this process,

                16    but we've gone through several projects where the

                17    ARB obviously is involved and --

                18                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Well, the ARB

                19    doesn't effect this particular --

                20                  MR. HUEY:  Just the -- the -- the

                21    statement I was going to make has to do with the

                22    aesthetics that the ARB -- and, again, I know

                23    this is not an ARB jurisdiction.  But at times,

                24    we are -- we are not really allowed to have

                25    front-facing garage doors because the ARB in
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                 1    certain neighborhoods and instances has deemed

                 2    that to be a visual detriment to the

                 3    neighborhood.  So --

                 4                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Again, this isn't

                 5    under the purview of the ARB.

                 6                  MR. HUEY:  Correct, sir.  We were

                 7    just trying to create a solution that we believed

                 8    -- that we believed would be more visually

                 9    appealing to the neighborhood in context.

                10                  MR. ROSENFELD:  It's a big decision

                11    of an aesthetics versus compliance with existing

                12    rules.

                13                  MR. HUEY:  Not 100 percent so, but

                14    it is a part of the solution that we're trying to

                15    make sure that obviously our neighbors are also

                16    taken into consideration as to what they're going

                17    to be seeing and the activity they're going to be

                18    seeing as part of the --

                19                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Considering the

                20    building of the house design, I don't -- I think

                21    you've -- I think you've got to put up aluminum

                22    siding doors.

                23                  MR. BERNER:  I have a follow-up

                24    related question.  The way the driveway is

                25    oriented now, the apron on the street on Eugenia
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                 1    is pretty much in the center of the lot.  If you

                 2    slid the apron on Eugenia such that it's a

                 3    straight driveway, you would eliminate I'm going

                 4    to use the word hypotenuse of the driveway.  You

                 5    would get some savings over there in lot

                 6    coverage.  I don't know how much it would be, but

                 7    it certainly would be savings that -- that you

                 8    could use to lower the overrun.

                 9                  MR. HUEY:  Yes, sir, Mr. Berner.

                10    There also happens to be a cluster of oak trees

                11    at the front corner of the lot, and I believe

                12    that's why the apron is located where it is

                13    because they're hard to read on this plan that

                14    Mr. Taylor has up.  But I don't know if you have

                15    the ability, John, to zoom in, but there is a

                16    large cluster of oak trees at that front

                17    cornering, the front lot property line area.

                18                  MR. BERNER:  All right.  So what if

                19    you then flipped the house such that the driveway

                20    would be closer to, I guess, the existing

                21    property?  I understand -- I walked the property

                22    the other day.  I understand it's steeper on that

                23    side, but I'm trying to think of ways to overcome

                24    the lot coverage issue.

                25                  MR. HUEY:  Yes.  I see your point
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                 1    of that berm is an option as well --

                 2                  MR. BERNER:  Yes.

                 3                  MR. HUEY:  -- that we're trying to

                 4    work with.  So that -- that is the issue to do

                 5    that side.  Correct.

                 6                  MR. BERNER:  And can you explain

                 7    the 12-foot offset that I discussed?  Because my

                 8    impression just from walking the site is the --

                 9    the offset, I guess, would provide you the visual

                10    ability to look to the west, but the offset has

                11    no impact from what I can understand in looking

                12    straight out to the ocean.  It's only the view

                13    over your neighbor's elevated pool to the west, I

                14    guess, is the only thing that the 12-foot offset

                15    is doing; is that correct?

                16                  MR. HUEY:  Yes, sir, Mr. Berner.

                17    And that was actually the positioning that our

                18    neighbor, Mr. Barkley, had suggested would be

                19    viable from his standpoint as well.  He's pleased

                20    with this new quarter of the house is positioned

                21    in that -- at that point.  So we positioned it

                22    for his -- his request, and that's why the

                23    12 feet.  That number came from a discussion with

                24    Mr. Barkley, the neighbor.

                25                  MR. BERNER:  Yeah, I understand.
�
                                                                      71



                 1    But I think my point is that the 12-foot offset

                 2    is just giving you the ability to look at the

                 3    west, not -- not straight onto the ocean itself.

                 4                  MR. HUEY:  Yes.  It's the ability

                 5    to have a form of a panorama and not compromise

                 6    Mr. Barkley past his point of comfort as well.

                 7                  MS. KULICK:  Mr. Huey?

                 8                  MR. HUEY:  Yes.

                 9                  MS. KULICK:  Perhaps you can answer

                10    the question that I raised earlier, and that is,

                11    how will increasing the lot coverage allow for

                12    different views?  I could understand if siting

                13    the house in a different place would increase

                14    coverage, but I don't understand how increasing

                15    the lot coverage could allow for different views.

                16                  MR. HUEY:  Thank you.  We're really

                17    into, I guess, a couple of points here that have

                18    to do with the way the ordinance is structured

                19    because our total lot coverage that really

                20    remains compliant with the ordinance, we're under

                21    the allowable 39.6 percent.  What's pushing us

                22    over is the sort of pervious/impervious

                23    definition and then the other caveat of the

                24    ordinance that even a pervious driveway is still

                25    considered to be impervious.
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                 1             However, by what we've done by

                 2    engineering this driveway in a system not seen

                 3    before, it is now all pervious.  There's just no

                 4    facility or device in the ordinance for us to

                 5    make that determination right now, so it's not --

                 6                  MS. KULICK:  And I appreciate what

                 7    you're saying, but I don't understand how it

                 8    answers my question.  And I'm not trying to be

                 9    difficult here, I'm just trying to understand.

                10                  MR. HUEY:  I guess what I'm -- I'm

                11    -- I'm saying is there really sort of -- and this

                12    -- and Mr. Taylor, if you maybe can clarify this

                13    because, as we read through this, we have to make

                14    our interpretations of how the ordinance is

                15    structured.  But there is a total lot coverage

                16    allowance that is available, and we meet and

                17    conform with that.  The issue that we have has to

                18    do with this pervious/impervious balance, and

                19    that's where we're asking for relief so...

                20                  MR. KLEINE:  If I could -- if I

                21    could speak.  I'm the property owner, Mark

                22    Kleine, and I appreciate your consideration.  I

                23    think maybe to answer your question, obviously

                24    our goal is to try to get the home as close to

                25    the ocean as possible.  By shortening or
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                 1    lengthening the driveway, that basically is what

                 2    -- what is allowing us either to get closer or to

                 3    have to move away from the ocean.

                 4             So originally we tried to put the home

                 5    as far -- as close to the ocean as possible.

                 6    That did not allow us to meet the lot coverage.

                 7    It also impeded on Mr. Barkley's view.  So what

                 8    we tried to do was to get the home in this

                 9    application as close to the ocean as possible and

                10    meet Mr. Barkley's need as well as -- putting in

                11    this driveway system then took out the --

                12    essentially the driveway being an issue.  Does

                13    that answer your question?

                14                  MS. KULICK:  Not really, but I

                15    appreciate it.

                16                  MR. KLEINE:  Well, maybe ask your

                17    question again, then, because I guess --

                18                  MS. KULICK:  I could understand if

                19    siting the house in a different location on the

                20    lot increase -- allowed for increased views.  I

                21    don't understand how increasing the lot coverage

                22    does that.

                23                  MS. VIETH:  Wendy, maybe I can try

                24    to take a crack at answering your question.  We

                25    are complying with the total coverage, the
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                 1    39.6 percent.  But due to the interpretation of

                 2    the driveway being impervious, we're asking for

                 3    more coverage for the impervious area.  So in

                 4    this circumstance, it's allowing the driveway to

                 5    be longer and closer to the ocean.

                 6             An alternative circumstance would be

                 7    moving the house closer to the street and

                 8    therefore putting that coverage area to the pool

                 9    deck, which would be pervious and also comply

                10    with the ordinance.

                11                  MR. HUEY:  Yeah, I think that's the

                12    point, you're right, that we're not really asking

                13    for relief from -- from the total lot coverage.

                14    We -- we're -- we comply.  We're asking for

                15    relief from the pervious/impervious -- or I call

                16    it the impervious calculation because the

                17    ordinance, as currently written, has no device to

                18    consider the type of engineered driveway that we

                19    are proposing.

                20                  MR. CASSIDY:  Other questions for

                21    the applicants?

                22                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Is there any data

                23    as to the longevity of the pervious -- the degree

                24    of perviousness?  Is that a form --

                25                  MR. HUEY:  Yes, sir.  We submitted
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                 1    an engineering data.

                 2                  MR. ROSENFELD:  (Inaudible)

                 3    perviousness over a period of time?

                 4                  MR. HUEY:  Yes, we submitted an

                 5    engineering data to Mr. Taylor in our packet.

                 6                  MR. ROSENFELD:  In other words, it

                 7    will -- it will continue the same degree of

                 8    perviousness, or does it degrade over time as

                 9    people drive over it?  Does it compact, as Russ

                10    mentioned, with sand and everything blowing into

                11    it?

                12                  MR. HUEY:  No.  No, sir.  It's an

                13    internally-drained driveway.  It's not a pervious

                14    driveway.

                15                  MR. ROSENFELD:  As long as the

                16    draining system is kept clean?

                17                  MR. BERNER:  Well, yeah.  Larry, so

                18    what they're doing -- instead of having -- down

                19    the driveway, they're -- they have catch basins

                20    at, I don't know, 15-, 20-foot intervals that are

                21    draining to underground perforated pipe going to

                22    a dry well.

                23                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Right.

                24                  MR. BERNER:  The driveways, instead

                25    of being draining off -- being beveled to drain
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                 1    off the driveway, the driveways are going to be

                 2    sloped that it captures water down the center and

                 3    drains into the catch basins.  So they're saying

                 4    that effectively is going to make it pervious is

                 5    what they're trying to present.

                 6                  (Inaudible.  Overlapping dialogue.)

                 7                  MR. BERNER:  -- bringing up, the

                 8    system would have to be cleaned at some point

                 9    because it will clog.

                10                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Yeah.

                11                  MR. BERNER:  It's not the pervious

                12    concrete.  It's the catch basin system that's

                13    going to a dry well.

                14                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Okay.  Thank you.

                15                  MR. BERNER:  But it will have to be

                16    cleaned.  You're exactly right.  At some point,

                17    it's going to clog, even the catch basin system.

                18                  MR. HUEY:  Yes, sir.  And where we

                19    -- we are architects, not engineers.  So

                20    obviously we've been trying to sophisticate a

                21    system like this, but this is accepted in other

                22    municipalities and is how we became aware of it,

                23    and we've used it in other local municipalities,

                24    and then that pulls no weight to you.  You're

                25    your own entity.  But that's where it came about,
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                 1    and that's why we presented it.  And at the last

                 2    meeting, we were asked for the engineering data,

                 3    and we were able to provide that in the

                 4    submittal.

                 5                  MR. CASSIDY:  Other questions?  All

                 6    right.  Let me ask if they're -- I'm sorry, Ben.

                 7    Did you have a question?

                 8                  MR. FARABEE:  Not yet.

                 9                  MR. CASSIDY:  Let me ask if there

                10    are others who wish to speak at this time?

                11                  MR. TAYLOR:  I do have Ms. Crafton,

                12    and I don't know if they wanted to share comment.

                13    I know they've joined us as well.

                14                  MS. CRAFTON:  No.

                15                  MR. CASSIDY:  Anyone else?  Okay.

                16    Not seeing anyone, I'd entertain any motions that

                17    anyone would care to present.  I'm not hearing a

                18    motion, so by that -- by that lack of action, the

                19    request for a variance is not approved.

                20                  MR. TAYLOR:  Well, you have to have

                21    some type of motion made either in favor or in

                22    opposition.

                23                  MR. FARABEE:  Okay.  I'll make the

                24    motion.

                25                  MR. TAYLOR:  Joe -- Joe, why don't
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                 1    you step in there.

                 2                  MR. FARABEE:  This is Ben Farabee.

                 3    I'm making a motion that the request for the

                 4    variance not be approved.

                 5                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you, Ben.  Is

                 6    there a second?

                 7                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Second.

                 8                  MR. HANAN:  I'll second it.

                 9                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you.  Any

                10    further discussion?

                11                  MR. KLEINE:  Yeah, it's unfortunate

                12    that it seems as though people's minds were made

                13    up before we even had an opportunity to present

                14    our case, but you're the Board, so that's your

                15    choice.

                16                  MR. ROSENFELD:  May I respond?

                17                  MR. TAYLOR:  Well, the only person

                18    that should be commenting now is the Board, so if

                19    we can keep it that way, that helps me out

                20    tremendously.

                21                  MR. CASSIDY:  Go ahead, Larry, if

                22    you have a comment.

                23                  MR. ROSENFELD:  My comment is that,

                24    as I'm new to the Board, I have no preconceived

                25    notions at all, number one.  And number two, I
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                 1    don't think we ever got an answer to Wendy's

                 2    question, and that concerns me.

                 3                  MR. FARABEE:  I'll make a comment.

                 4                  MR. ROSENFELD:  (Inaudible).  You

                 5    know, if you can't, why does -- you know, as

                 6    Wendy asked the question, why does that create a

                 7    problem?  I mean, you can relocate the house and

                 8    not change the foot area, and that can solve it.

                 9    I mean, but, you know, again, I'm not an

                10    architect, and I'm not the homeowner, so I don't

                11    know, but that's my concern.  So I -- I agree

                12    that this should be denied.

                13                  MR. CASSIDY:  I guess what I would

                14    say is that as the applicant mentioned, the

                15    further you move -- you can move the house

                16    further away from the ocean and get into

                17    compliance, and the -- this is a -- it's a --

                18    it's a -- a -- a fight between -- between the

                19    view and complying with the regulations.  Ben, go

                20    ahead.

                21                  MR. FARABEE:  I have a statement --

                22    I have a statement, not a question, but a couple

                23    things here bother me.  First of all, we're not

                24    here to make engineering decisions.  I had a

                25    feeling all along that we're -- we were -- we
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                 1    were asked to take some faith in engineering that

                 2    has gone forward in this.

                 3             I'd also like to say I think the Town

                 4    and the applicant have greatly complicated this

                 5    by not taking -- by their definitions or lack of

                 6    definitions of pervious, impervious, included,

                 7    excluded, and all this jargon that goes on that

                 8    doesn't help us in making decisions, and I think

                 9    it only complicates things when one person says

                10    it's pervious and then the next person says it's

                11    impervious and talking about the same thing and

                12    yet when you ask them, there's no conflict.  So

                13    that's my statement.

                14                  MR. CASSIDY:  Thank you.

                15                  MR. HUEY:  Sorry.  I know --

                16    Mr. Chairman, I know I'm only an applicant, but

                17    may I just speak to Mr. Farabee's comment, which

                18    I think was a very good comment?  When we brought

                19    this --

                20                  MR. CASSIDY:  Go ahead.

                21                  MR. HUEY:  When we brought this

                22    potential drainage scenario to John Taylor, John

                23    was very helpful with us, but he said he does not

                24    have the ability to make that determination of

                25    viability.  He said that really had to go to your
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                 1    Board.  So Mr. Farabee, I appreciate your

                 2    comment.  It's kind of like you're caught in a

                 3    catch-22 as well.  So I appreciate your

                 4    statement.  Thank you.

                 5                  MR. CASSIDY:  I'd just make a

                 6    similar comment.  This -- this application

                 7    bothered me the last time it came before us, and

                 8    it -- it still bothers me.  If the system

                 9    operated as -- as alleged, I think we probably

                10    want to consider it in a different fashion, but

                11    we don't have that option at the moment.

                12             Other comments from the Board?  I'm

                13    going to take a roll call vote on this one.

                14    Again, the motion is to -- to reject the

                15    application.  So a yes vote will be to reject; a

                16    no vote will be not in favor of rejecting.

                17             Ben?

                18                  MR. FARABEE:  Yes.

                19                  MR. CASSIDY:  Jay?  Jay?  Are you

                20    still here, Jay?  Oh, there you are.  Can you

                21    take your mute off?  I'm not hearing you, Jay.

                22    Let me come back to Jay.  Jay, there's something

                23    wrong.  We're not -- we're not hearing you.

                24             Morris?

                25                  MR. HANAN:  Yes.
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                 1                  MR. CASSIDY:  Wendy?

                 2                  MS. KULICK:  Yes.

                 3                  MR. CASSIDY:  Russ?

                 4                  MR. BERNER:  Yes.

                 5                  MR. CASSIDY:  Larry?

                 6                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Yes.

                 7                  MR. CASSIDY:  Frank, yes.

                 8             Jay?  Would you turn your camera on,

                 9    Jay?  All right.  We've got technical

                10    difficulties with Jay, so we're not going to

                11    record his vote.  But for the rest of the Zoning

                12    Board, that is -- that is -- I'm sorry, go ahead,

                13    Jay.

                14             Well, the rest of the Zoning Board that

                15    has voted, it's unanimous, and we reject the

                16    application.  And I think the basis for that is

                17    that the -- the primary lot coverage as defined

                18    in our current requirements is -- is violated and

                19    running out of opportunities to -- to bring the

                20    development into -- into -- into compliance.  So

                21    I thank everybody.

                22             John, do we have any further business

                23    today?

                24                  MR. TAYLOR:  No additional business

                25    today.  Just to comment, thank you all for
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                 1    joining us today.  You'll -- I've been sending

                 2    out notices in regards to more continuing ed

                 3    opportunities, but no additional business today.

                 4    We will have a meeting next month, and that will

                 5    be at our regular scheduled time at 3:00 p.m.  So

                 6    this was just noted sort of anomaly here to shift

                 7    -- shift our time period to 10:00 a.m., but we

                 8    will meet next month at 3:00.

                 9                  MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.  Thanks, John.

                10    If there are no further issues, I'd entertain a

                11    motion to adjourn.

                12                  MR. FARABEE:  So moved.

                13                  MR. CASSIDY:  Moved.

                14                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Second.

                15                  MR. CASSIDY:  Second?  All those in

                16    favor, please say aye.

                17                  (All respond aye.)

                18                  MR. CASSIDY:  Opposed?  All right.

                19    Thank you, everyone.

                20                  MR. ROSENFELD:  Thank you.

                21                 (End of audio recording.)

                22

                23

                24

                25
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